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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR-S ON THE BUSINESS
ACTIVITIES AND ITS FINANCIAL POSITION FOR 2016

1. OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

Since November 2006 to May 2016 the company was member of capital group ANWIL,
where controlling entity is for the entire period ANWIL SPOtKA AKCYJNA with registered
office at Torunska 222, 87-805 Wioctawek, Poland (hereinafter ,ANWIL S.A.“). Capital
group ANWIL is part of the capital group PKN ORLEN, at which the controlling entity is
Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN Spélka Akcyjna with registered office at Chemikéw 7, 09-
411 Ptock, Poland (hereinafter ,PKN ORLEN S.A.%).

On June 10, 2016 the company UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.0., with registered office Zaluzi 1,
Litvinov, 436 70, ID No: 27597075, concluded an agreement with the company ANWIL S.A.
on transfer of the shares, based on which the company UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.o. acquired
100% of shares of SPOLANA a.s. and became the sole shareholder of SPOLANA a.s.

SPOLANA a.s. has no organizational unit abroad.

2. EVENTS OF 2016

The greater part of the year 2016 the company faced the consequences of accident on
ethylene production unit of UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.o. in Litvinov from August 2015, as a
result of which supplies of ethylene, main raw material for PVC production, was interrupted.
Market situation and limited capacity of suitable transport means did not enable to replace
the ethylene supplies in full extent and therefore PVC production was operated on a limited
scale till September 2016. Supplies of ethylene from Litvinow were restored in October and
PVC production is gradually returning to original performance.

3. MARKET DEVELOPMENT
S-PVC (NERALIT)

Due to limited production of PVC the company’s revenues declined significantly compared
to previous years. The demand for PVC the Company was able to cover only partially
during the three quarters, only after restoration of ethylene supplies the Company gradually
resumes deliveries to all customers. The return to the market is slowed down by seasonal
influences, when at the end of each year the demand decreases due to decline in building
industry, which is important user of PVC products.
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CAPROLACTAM

Demand for caprolactam has stabilized during 2016 especially thanks to gradual restoration
of the demand in Asia, which also influenced positively European market. The Company
expects moderate recovery also in 2017.

SODIUM HYDROXIDE

In 2016 the production and sales of sodium hydroxide did not reach planned level due to
the fact that it is not possible to produce sodium hydroxide without concurrent PVC
production. In order to satisfy main customers the Company supplied its own production by
import of sodium hydroxide from ANWIL S.A. Sodium hydroxide prices were relatively
stable during the whole year 2016 despite the tense situation on the market which was
caused by low stock of sodium hydroxide in Europe. Prices increased only during the 4th
quarter 2016.

SPOLSAN AND SPOLSAN S

Sales of SPOLSAN in 2016 were influenced especially by slump on fertilizer market in first
half of the year and also by still lower caprolactam production with which the Spolsan
production is technologically linked.

SULPHURIC ACID AND OLEUM

Sales of sulphuric acid and oleum fell down by 21% compared to 2015 due to restart of
production in PRECHEZA Pferov. In case of oleum sales were affected also by lack of
railway tank cars due to repairs and revisions. In the coming year the Company will
concentrate on increase of supplies to traditional customers and acquiring of new
customers.

4. PROFIT / LOSS

Revenues of the Company reached CZK 3 740 290 thousand in 2016 which is only 73,4%
of 2015 level. Revenues and profit/loss in 2016 were adversely influenced by lack of
ethylene after the accident on ethylene unit of UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.o. in August 2015. In
2016 the Company suffered loss in the amount of CZK 472 656 thousand of which CZK
130 000 thousand constitute additional provision for liquidation of electrolysis plant, which
will be shut down during 2017.

5. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

In research and development the Company concentrates on rationalization measures
aiming to reduce costs of raw materials and energies and also to reduce the impact of
production activities on the environment. Development activities in 2016 were focused
especially on folowing topics:
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Ecologization and optimization of steam production through replacement of coal boilers by
natural gas boilers — feasibility study has been prepared and tender for supplier will be
launched.

Modernization of sulphuric acid production along with increase of heat production -
conceptional study has been prepared, investment study preparation will follow.

Increase of storage capacity and quality of molten caprolactam including new loading
station for road tank cars — investiment study and project for building permit have been
prepared.

6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

In 2012 new Air Protection Act was issued which tightens emission limits for energy boilers.
The Company prepares project of new energy unit based on decentralization of heat
sources and on replacement of coal boilers by natural gas boilers.

In June 2016 in EU Official Journal conclusions of BAT (Best Available Technology) were
published for common wastewater treatment systems, waste gas treatment systems and for
treatment with waste water and waste gases in chemical industry. As a consequence it will
be necessary to introduce nitrification and denitrification processon water treatment plant til
June 9 2020. ‘

Existing amalgam electrolysis production unit will be shut down as per June 30, 2017 in
accordance with binding conditions in valid Integrated permit. At present the Company
implements the project of transfer to PVC production from alternative raw materials (EDC).

During 2016 no changes of integration permits were made. Based on binding condition in
valid integrated permit submitted the Company to Regional Office of Central Bohemia
Region in December 2016 project of operation shutdown of amalgam electrolysis.

In the liquidation of old environmental burdens in 2016 continued monitoring of groundwater
and surface water and maintenace works on concrete surface in location of former dioxine
contaminated buildings. On September 6 2016 Ministry of finance called for tender for
remediation of groundwater contaminated by chlorinated hydrocarbons in the area of
petrochemistry. Deadline for submission of tender offers was set to February 2, 2017. In
2016 Ministry of finance signed contract for completion of survey and preparation of project
documentation for remediation in area between internal road and the bank of river Labe.
Survey was completed during 2016, project works will continue in 2017.
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7. EMPLOYMENT POLICY AND EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS
Goals of employment policy are as follows:

e to ensure qualified employees (especially replacement of employees going to
retirement and leaving within the normal fluctuation plus casting of new workin
positions),

o stabilization of existing staff,

e continuing education of employees,

¢ revision and optimization of existing processes

Remuneration system and personnel policy

Remuneration system continues according to settings from 2015. Main component is basic
salary contractually agreed between employee and employer. Basic salary is based on
wage policy set by payroll system HAY, where for majority of working positions isused scale
with 16 degrees (reference levels).

Besides the base salary are provided to employees:

e Surcharges based on collective agreement.

e Monthly bonuses in the framework of motivation system.

¢ Quaterly bonuses based on evaluation of PKN ORLEN corporate values.
e Jubilee bonuses after 25 and 35 years of uninterrupted employment.

¢ Retirement benefits according to collective agreement.

e Extraordinary bonuses.

8. EXPECTED DEVELOPMENT OF THE COMPANY

Based on valid integrated permit the existing amalgam electrolysis can be operated only till
June 2017. In December 2013 the Company applied for change integrated permit for PVC
production so that after shut down of amalgam electrolysis the Company could produce the
PVC from purchased EDC. The Regional Office of Central Bohemia Region issued the
change on July 9, 2014. With respect to recovery on the market of the main products
considers the Company also another possible scenarios including construction of the new
membrane electrolysis. In the area of caprolactam and ammonium sulphate production, the
Company at present builds up granulation unit for ammonium sulphate.
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9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

As per the date of preparation of this Annual Report the Company’s management is not
aware of any important subsequent events that would have material impact on the financial
statements as per 31 December 2016.

In Neratovice, 27 February 2017

/élip Mikotajczyk

Vice-chairman of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors
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REPORT ON RELATIONS BETWEEN THE CONTROLLING ENTITY AND
THE CONTROLLED ENTITY
AND

BETWEEN THE CONTROLLED ENTITY AND OTHER ENTITIES
CONTROLLED BY THE SAME CONTROLLING ENTITY

for 2016

in accordance with Section 82 of the Act No. 90/2012 Coll., on Business Companies and
Cooperatives (on Business Corporations), as amended (hereinafter the ,Act on Business
Corporations™)
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Financial period from 1.1.2016 to 31.12.2016 is the vesting period for this Report on relations
between the controlling entity and the controlled entity and between the controlled entity and other
entities controlied by the same controlling entity (hereinafter the ,Report on Relations®).

The structure of relations between the entities

Controlled entity

SPOLANA, a.s. with registered office at ul. Prace 657, 277 11 Neratovice, Corporate I1D: 451 47 787,
entered in the Commercial Register maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B,
Enclosure 1462 (hereinafter ,SPOLANA a.s.").

Controlling entities

Till 10 June 2016 the controlling entity was ANWIL SPOLKA AKCYJNA with registered office at
Torunska 222, 87-805 Wioctawek, Poland (hereinafter ,ANWIL S.A%).

Since 10 June 2016 the controlling entity is UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.o. with registered office at Zaluzi
1, 436 70 Litvinov, Czech republic, ID No.: 275 97 075, entered in the Commercial Register
maintained by the Regional Court in Usti nad Labem, Section C, Insert 24430 (hereinafter
,UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.o.”).

UNIPETROL, a.s., with registered office at Na Pankraci 127, 140 00 Praha 4, ID No.: 616 72 190,
entered in the Commercial Register maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B, Insert
3020 (hereinafter ,UNIPETROL, a.s.”) is the only shareholder of UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.0.

Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN Spélka Akcyjna with registered office at Chemikéw 7, PLOCK,
Poland (hereinafter ,Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.“) is the majority shareholder (associate) of
ANWIL S.A. and UNIPETROL, a.s.

Other Controlled Entities

The entities controlled by the Controlling Entity — Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN Spélka Akcyjna
are members of business group ,PKN ORLEN S.A ", whose scheme is shown in Appendix No. 1.

The entities controlled by UNIPETROL, a.s. are members of PKN ORLEN S.A. business group and
are also members of ,UNIPETROL" business group, whose scheme is shown in Appendix No. 2.

The role of the Controlled Entity

The role of SPOLANA a.s. in the framework in the capital group is production and sale of chemical
products and plastics, production, distribution and supplies of energies

The method and means of controlling

Till 10 June 2016 the company ANWIL SP,OLKA AKCYJNA was the sole shareholder of SPOLANA
a.s. and had direct influence on SPOLANA a.s.

Since 10 June 2016 the company UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.o. is the sole shareholder of SPOLANA a.s.
and has direct influence on SPOLANA a.s.

The company UNIPETROL, a.s. is the sole shareholder of UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.o. and since 10
June 2017 has indirect influence on SPOLANA a.s.
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The company Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A. is the majority shareholder of ANWIL S.A. and

UNIPETROL, a.s. and has indirect influence on SPOLANA a.s. (till 10 June 2016 through ANWIL
S.A., from 10 June 2016 through UNIPETROL, a.s. and UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.0.)

The list of actions undertaken in the last financial period made on instigation or in the interest of the
Controlling Entity or entities controlled by such entity. on condition such actions concern assets
exceeding 10% of the controlled entity’s equity capital identified in the last financial statements

In the vesting period there were no actions carried out in accordance with article 82 (2d) of the Act
on Business Corporations.

The list of mutual agreements between the Controlled Entity and the Controlling Entity or between
the Controlled Entities

The mutual agreements between SPOLANA a.s. and the companies ANWIL S.A., UNIPETROL
RPA, s.r.o., UNIPETROL a.s. and Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A. as well as with other
Controlled Entities were concluded on the standard terms, while agreed and provided performances
or counter-performances were based on the standard terms of business relations.

The list of mutual agreements with the details is enclosed in Appendix No. 3.

The conclusion

The Board of Directors of SPOLANA a.s. based on available information declares that between
above mentioned companies in the framework of the business group were not concluded any
contracts, acts or measures that would incurred any detriment, special advantage or disadvantage in
accordance with the arcticle 82 (4) of the Act of Business Corporations as a result of any contracts,
acts or measures taken between entities in business group. No risks arise from the relations
between entities in business group to SPOLANA a.s. except those arising from standard participation
in international business group.

The company’s Board of Directors prepared the Report on Relations based on information available
on the date of the Report on Relations.

The Report on Relations is to be read in conjuction with. the Appendix No. 1, 2 and 3.
Neratovice, 27 February 2017

On behalf of the Board of Directors of SPOLANA a.s.

Michat Krzysztof Kaliciak

Vice-chairman of the Board of Directors Member.of the Board of Directors



Appendix No. 1

BUSINESS GROUP OF POLSKI KONCERN NAFTOWY ORLEN S.A. — CONTROLLED ENTITIES

1 January 2016 - 31 December 2016

Shares in directly and

undirectly controlled

companies in % of the

Company controlled by PKN ORLEN S.A. Residence . Note
capital
as at asat
1.1.2016 31.12.2016
1. Unipetrol a.s. Prague 62,99% 62,99%
2. AB ORLEN Lietuva Juodeikiai 100,00% 100,00%
2.1 UAB Mazeikiu Nafta Trading House Vilnius 100,00% 100.00%
2.1.1 SIA ORLEN Latvija Riga, Latvia 100,00% 100,00%
2.1.2 ORLEN Eesti OU Tallin, Estonia 100,00% 100,00%
2.2 UAB EMAS Juodeikiai 100,00% 100,00%
3. AB Ventus Nafta Vilnius 100,00% 100,00%
4. ANWIL S.A. Wioctawek 100,00% 100,00%
4.2 Pro-Lab sp. z 0.0. w likwidacji Wioctawek 99,99% 0,00% | Company liquidated on 18.4.2016
C di d on 10.6.2016 to
4.3 SPOLANA a.s. Neratovice 100,00% 0,00% SHmpaty SEEOSEE S
UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.o.
4.4 Przedsiebiorstwo Ustug Technicznych WIRCOM Wiodawek 97.38% 0.009 Company merged to ORLEN Serwis S.A.
Spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzilano$cia R 7 on1.3.2016
5. iInowroctawskie Kopalnie Soli "SOLINO" S.A. Inowroctaw 100,00% 100,00%
6. Kopalnia Soli Lubien sp. z 0.0. Warszawa 100,00% 100,00%
7. ORLEN Administracja Sp. z 0.0. Ptock 100,00% 100,00%
8. ORLEN Asfalt sp. z 0.0. Ptock 100,00% 100,00%
8.1 ORLEN Asfalt Ceska Republika s.r.o. Pardubice 100,00% 100,00%
9. ORLEN Serwis S.A. Ptock 100,00% 100,00%
10. ORLEN Budonaft Sp. z 0.0. Limanowa 100,00% 100,00%
11. ORLEN Centrum Serwisowe Sp. z 0.0. Opole 99,33% 99,33%
12. ORLEN Deutschland GmbH Elmshorn _ 100,00% 100,00%
13. ORLEN EKO Sp. z 0.0. Ptock 100,00% 100,00%
. . St. Julians,
14. Orlen Holding Malta Limited 99,50% 99,50%
] Malta
St. Julians,
14.1 Orlen Insurance Ltd. 99,99% 99,99%
Malta
15. ORLEN KolTrans Sp. z o.0. Ptock 99,85% 99,85%
16. ORLEN Centrum Ustug Korporacyjnych sp. z o.0. Ptock 100,00% 100,00%
Company transformed into joint stock
17. Orlen Laboratorium S.A. Ptock 99,38% 99,38% ey !
company on 10.8.2016
18. ORLEN Ochrona Sp. z 0.0. Ptock 100,00% 100,00%
18.1 ORLEN Apsauga UAB Juodeikiai 100,00% 100,00%
19. ORLEN OIL Sp. z 0.0. Krakow 100,00% 100,00%
20. ORLEN Paliwa Sp. z 0.0. . Widetka 100,00% 100,00%
20.1 Petro-Mawi Sp. z 0.0. w likwidacji Sosnowiec 60,00% 60,00%
21. ORLEN Projekt S.A. Ptock 99,77% 99,77%
22. ORLEN Transport Krakéw Sp. z o.0. w upadtosci Krakéw 98,41% 98,41%
23. ORLEN Transport S.A. Ptock 100,00% 0,00% | Company disposed on 29.2.2016
24. ORLEN Upstream Sp. z 0.0. Warszawa 100,00% 100,00%
Company merged to ORLEN Upstream
24.1 ORLEN Upstream International B.V. Amsterdam 100,00% 0,00% pany & P
sp.z 0.0.0n 21.10.2016
Company directly controlled by Orlen
24.1.1 Orlen Upstream Canada Ltd Calgary 100,00% |  100,00% ] v
Upstream Sp. z 0.0. as of 21.10.2016

10




Company merged to Orlen Upstream

Ptock

24.1.1.1 Kicking Horse Energy Inc. Calgar 100,00% 0,00%
s b el — 0 ° | canada Ltd. on 1.1.2016
: Company merged to Orlen Upstream
24.1.1.1.1 KCK Operating Company Ltd. Calgary 100,00% 0,00%
Canada Ltd. on 1.1.2016
. Company merged to Orlen Upstream
24.1.1.1.2 Columbia Natural Resources Canada Ltd. Calgary 100,00% 0,00%
Canada Ltd. on 1.1.2016
L . . Company merged to Orlen Upstream
24.1.1.1.3 Kicking Horse International Exploration Ltd. | Calgary 100,00% 0,00%
Canada Ltd. on 1.1.2016
The remaining stake owned by Pierdiae
Energy Limited. Pierdiae Energy Limited
24.1.1.1.4 Pierdiae Production GP Ltd. Calgary 50,00% 50,00% | owned in 11% by KCK Atlantic Holdings
Ltd. Company directly controlied by
OUC Ltd. as of 1.1.2016
. . Company directly controlled by
24.1,1.1.4.1 671519 N.B. Ltd. (New Brunswick) Saint John 100,00% 100,00% L :
Pierdiae Production GP Ltd.
. . Company directly controlled by QUC
24.1.1.1.5 KCK Atlantic Holdings Ltd. Calgary 100,00% 100,00%
Ltd. as of 1.1.2016
The remaining stake owned by Pierdiae
o . Energy Limited. Pierdiae Energy Limited
24.1.1.1.5.1 Pierdiae Production LP Calgary 80,00% 80,00% . . .
owned in 11% by KCK Atlantic Holdings
Ltd.
Company directly controlled by QUC
24.1.1.2 1426628 Alberta Ltd. Calgary 100,00% 100,00% pany Y y
Ltd. as of 1.1.2016
i . Company directly controlled by OUC
24.1.1.3 OneEx Operations Partnership Calgary 100,00% 100,00%
Ltd. as of 1.1.2016
. . . Company merged to FX Energy Inc on
24.3 Kiwi Acquisition Corp. Carson City 100,00% 0,00%
1.1.2016
. Company directly controlled by Orlen
24.3.1 FX Energy Inc. Salt Lake City 100,00% 100,00%
Upstream Sp. z 0.0. as of 21.10.2016
24.3.1.1 FX Drilling Company, Inc. Salt Lake City 100,00% 0,00% | Company disposed on 30.12.2016
24.3.1.2 FX Producing Company, Inc. Salt Lake City 100,00% 0,00% | Company disposed on 30.12.2016
24.3.1.3 Frontier Exploration, Inc. Salt Lake City - 100,00% 100,00%
0,01% stake owned by FX Energy Inc.
24.3.1.4 FX Energy Netherlands Partnership C.V. Utrecht 100,00% 100,00% | The remaining part (99,99%) owned by
’ : ! ) Frontier Exploration Inc.
24.3.1.4.1 FX Energy Netherlands B.V. Utrecht 100,00% 100,00%
24.3.1.4.1.1 FX Energy Polska Sp. z 0.0. Warszawa 100,00% 100,00%
i Company merged to ORLEN Serwis on
25. ORLEN Wir Sp. 2 o0.0. Ptock 76,59% 0,00%
29.2.2016
26. Petrolot Sp. z 0.0. Warszawa 100,00% 100,00%
27. ORLEN Potudnie S.A. Trzebinia 100,00% 100,00%
27.1 Energomedia Sp. z 0.0. Trzebinia 100,00% 100,00%
27.2 Euronaft Trzebinia Sp. z 0.0. Trzebinia 100,00% 100,00%
27.3 EkoNaft Sp. z 0.0. w likwidacji Trzebinia 100,00% 0,00% | Company liquidated on 17.5.2016
27.4 KONSORCJUM OLEJOW PRZEPRACOWANYCH - . ’ '
. . Jedlicze 89,00% 89,00%
ORGANIZACJA ODZYSKU OPAKOWAN | OLEJOW S.A.
27.5 RAN-WATT Sp. z 0.0. w likwidacji Torun 51,00% 51,00%
28. Ship - Service S.A. Warszawa 60,86% 60,86%
29. ORLEN Finance AB Stokholm 100,00% 100,00%
30. ORLEN Capital AB Stokholm 100,00% 100,00%
31. Baltic Power Sp. z 0.0. Warszawa 100,00% 100,00%
32. Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0. Ptock 50,00% 50,00%
32.1 Basell ORLEN Polyolefins Sprzedaz Sp. z 0.0. Ptock 100,00% 100,00%
33. Ptocki Park Przemystowo-Technologiczny S.A. Ptock 50,00% 50,00%
33.1 Centrum Edukacji Sp. z 0.0. 69,43% 69,43%
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Appendix No. 2

BUSINESS GROUP OF UNIPETROL, a.s. — CONTROLLED ENTITIES

1 January 2016 — 31 December 2016

Companies controlied by UNIPETROL, a.s.

Companies with direct share of UNIPETROL, a.s.

Residence

Shares in directly and
indirectly controlled
companies in % of the

Note

capital
Companies with indirect share of UNIPETROL, a.s. 1.1.2016 31.12.2016
1. UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.0., ID 275 97 075 Litvinov, Zaluzi 1 100,00 100,00
. Litvinov, S.K. Other shareholders - Litvinov city owns
1.1 HC VERVA Litvinov, a.s., ID 640 48 098 70,95 70,95 o,
Neumanna 1598 22,14% and HC Litvinov, o0.s. owns 6,91%
= P Company merged to UNIPETROL RPA,
1.2 CHEMOPETROL, a.s., 1D 25492 110 Litvinov, Zaluzi 1 100,00 -
s.r.0.on 2.8.2016
1.3 UNIPETROL DOPRAVA, s.r.0., ID 64049 701 Litvinov, Rizodol 4 99,88 99,88 | 0,12% owned by UNIPETROL, a.s.
Langen, Germany,
1.4 UNIPETROL DEUTSCHLAND GmbH, 1D HRB 34346 Paul-Ehrlich- 99,90 99,90 | 0,1% owned by UNIPETROL, a.s.
Strasse 1B
Bratislava -
1.5 UNIPETROL SLOVENSKO, s.r.0., ID 357 77 087 mestskd st 86,96 86,96 | 13,04% owned by UNIPETROL, a.s.
RuZinov, Jasikova
2, Slovensko
2040 Budadrs,
1.6 UNIPETROL RPA Hungary Kft., ID 13-09-181774 Puskas Tivadar 100,00 100,00
utca 12, Hungary
Neratovice, ul.
1.7 SPOLANA a.s., ID 451 47 787 , - 100,00 | Company purchased on 10.6.2016
Prace 657
1.8 Nadace Unipetrol Litvinov, Zaluzi 1 - 100,00 | Foundation established on 27.12.2016
L, I Company merged to UNIPETROL RPA,
2. UNIPETROL SERVICES, s.r.0., ID 276 08 051 Litvinov, Zaluzi 1 100,00 - .
s.r.0.on 2.8.2016
3. Unipetrol vyzkumné vzdélavaci centrum, a.s., ID Ust{ nad Labem,
.. 100,00 100,00
62243136 Revoluéni 1521/ 84
Praha 4, Na Company merged to UNIPETROL RPA,
4. BENZINA, s.r.o., ID 601 93 328 L. 100,00 -
Pankraci 127 s.r.0.on 1.1.2016
Praha 8, Liben,
4.1 PETROTRANS, s.r.o., 1D 25123041 .t e 99,37 99,37 | 0,63% owned by UNIPETROL, a.s.
Stielni¢nd 2221/50
. i J— Company merged to UNIPETROL RPA,
5. UNIPETROL RAFINERIE, s.r.o. ID 278 85 429 Litvinov, Zaluzi 1 100,00 -
s.r.0.on 2.8.2016
6. CESKA RAFINERSKA, a.s., ID 627 41 772 Litvinov, Z4luzi 2 100,00 100,00
7. UNIPETROL AUSTRIA, GmbH, in liquidation, ID 43 Vienna, Apfelgasse 160,00 UNIPETROL AUSTRIA, GmbH liquidated
551 2, Austria ’ on 9.9.2016.
Pardubice, Svitkov,
8. PARAMO, a:s., ID 481 73 355 . ; 100,00 100,00
Prerovska 560
Hradisté pod
i . Company merged to UNIPETROL
8.1 MOGUL SLOVAKIA, s.r.o., ID 36 222 992 Vratnou, U ihriska 100,00 -
i SLOVENSKO, s.r.o.on 1.1.2016
300, Slovakia
. Pardubice,
8.2 Paramo Oil s.r.o0., ID 246 87 341 . i 100,00 100,00
Prerovska 560
Kralupy nad
. 49% shares owned by SYNTHOS Kralupy
9. Butadien Kralupy a.s., ID 278 93 995 Vitavou, O. 51,00 51,00 .
Wichterleho 810 -
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Other companies with share of UNIPETROL, a.s.

1. UNIVERSAL BANKA, a.s, in bankruptcy, ID 482 64

Praha 1,

12,24% shares owned by UNIPETROL

Senovainé namésti 16,45 16,45
865 RPA, s.r.0.
1588/4
Level 3, Triq ir-
Rampa ta’ San
2. ORLEN HOLDING MALTA LIMITED, ID C 39945 Giljan, Balluta Bay, 0,5 0,5 | 99,5% shares owned by PKN ORLEN S.A.

St Julians, STJ1062
Malta

13
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SPOLANA a.s.

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)
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SPOLANA a.s.
~ SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS AS ADOPTED BY THE EUROPEAN UNION

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

S ey JHE e e R o SRS R o e e (SRS s
Statement of profit or loss
Revenues 4. 3740 290 5095 607
Cost of sales B _ 5.1. (3 806 892) (4841 605)
Gross profit/(loss) on sales (66 702) 254 002
Distribution expenses ' 52. (128 944) ' (184 739)
Administrative expenses 5.2, (171831) (151 993)
Other operating income 6.1. 54 493 135 097
Other operating expenses - 6.2, (155 188) (134 615)
Loss from operations (468 172) ' (82 248)
" Finance income ) o N N 7033 - 14 995
_ Finance cosls - 7.2. _ (11517) (52 424)
Net finance costs (4 484} (37 429)
Loss before tax (472 656) (119 677)
Tax expéﬁse 8 A -
Net loss (472 656) (119 677)
Other comprehensive income . - -
Total net comprehensive income (472 656) (119 677)

The separate financial statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes forming part of the financial statements set out on pages 8-42.
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SPOLANA a.s.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016

(in thousands of CZK)

Statement of financial position

[ NOTE 31/12/2016 21/5212015 0170112016
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 9. 218 146 179 403 129715
Investment property 10. 30 049 70 371 137 404
Intangible assets 1. - - 20103
Other non-current financial assets 12. 879 879 879
249 074 250 653 288 101
Current assets
Inventories 13. 538 524 546 697 517 394
Trade and other receivables 14. 436 959 365 953 497 361
Other financial assets 15. 3585 - -
_ Cash and cash equivalents 186. 9798 63 898 19 258
988 866 976 548 1034 013
Total assets 1237 940 1227 201 1322114
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 17.1. 3455 229 3455 229 2 055 229
Retained earnings 17.2. (3 869 667) (3397 011) (3 277 334)
Total equity (414 438) 58 218 (1 222 105)
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 18. 285 207 161 557 131 584
Other non-current liabilites. — 19, 2966 237 2307
] - 298 173 163854 133 981
Current liabilities
Trade and other liabilities 20. B59 358 616716 838 417
Loans and borrowings - - 1177 471
Provisions 18, 38 697 50 579 50 154
Deferred income 21, 1833 1785 5969
Other financial liabilities 1 454 317 335949 338 227
- - B 1354 205 1005 029 2 410 238
Total liabilities 1652 378 1168 983 2 544 219
Total equity and liabilities 1237 940 1227 201 1322 114

The separate financial statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes forming part of the financial statements set out on pages 8-42.
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SPOLANA a.s.

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016

(in thousands of CZK)

e

NOTE

Statement of changes in equity

17.1.

LiLd
17.2.

01/01/2016 3455 229 (3 397 011) 58 218
Net loss - (472 656) (472 858)
Total net comprehensive income - (472 656) (472 656)
31/12/2016 3 455 229 (3 869 667) (414 438)
01/01/2015 2055 229 (3277 334) (1222 105)
Net loss - (119 677) (119 677)
Total net comprehensive income - (119 677) (119 677)
Increase of share capital 1400 000 - 1400 000
31/12/2015 3 455 229 (3 397 011) 58 218

The separate financial statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes forming part of the financial statements set out on pages 8-42.
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SPOLANA a.s.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016

(in thousands of CZK)

Statement of cash flows

2016 2015

Cash flows - operating activities
Loss before tax B (472 656) (119 677)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 52 96 474 86 052
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss (490) (159)
Interest and dividends, net 8214 28 818
(Profit)/Loss on investing activities (24 433) 46 831
Change in provisions 153 840 79 203
Other adjustments - -84 (74 517)
Change in working capital - 189 205 (143 090)

inventories 8173 (29 303)

receivables (71 008) 129 970

liabilities 252 038 (243 757)
Net cash used in operating activities (49 762) (96 539)
Cash flows - investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (112 025) (51 000)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 629 2575
Proceeds/(Outflows) from cash pool assets (3 585) -
Settlement of financial derivatives (1) (123)
Other 1 -
Net cash used in investing activities (114 981) (48 548)
Cash flows - financing activities
Proceeds/Outflows) from loans and borrowings - (1177 103)
Proceeds/(Outflows) from cash pool liabilities 118 909 (2 183)
Interest paid (6 257) (29 573)
Increase of share capital - 1 400 000
Other {2 498) (1 254)
Net cash provided by financing activities 110 154 189 887
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {54 589) 44 800
Ef_fe_ct of exch__a_ng_e rate changes 489 (160)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 63 898 19 258
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 16. 9 798 63 898

The separate financial statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes forming part of the financial statements set out on pages 8-42.
7
(—~ Unipetrol
(it

[ExEmeenny



SPOLANA a.s.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)

DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY AND PRINCIPLES OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY

Establishment of the Company
SPOLANA a.s. (the “Company”) is a joint stock company established by the National Property Fund of the Czech Republic
by a foundation agreement dated 1 May 1992. The Company was registered in the Register of Companies at the Municipal
Court in Prague on 1 May 1992.

Identification number of the Company
451 47 787

Registered office of the Company
SPOLANA a.s.

ul. Prace 657

277 11 Neratovice

Czech Republic

Principal activities

The principal business activities of the Company is the production of chemical products and plastics in an industrial
manner, it includes operation of two production units. The PVC plant produces in particular ethylene-based products
(PVC), sodium hydroxide, hydrochloric acid and sodium hypochlorite. The caprolactam plant produces caprolactam and
ammonium sulphate, sulphuric acid and oleum. Furthermore, the Company operates a power and heating plant, water
management and leases unused buildings.

Ownership structure
UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.o. is the sole shareholder of SPOLANA a.s.

Statutory and supervisory bodies
Members of the statuto and supervisor

odles ofSPOLANA a s as at 31December 2016 were as follows:

Board of Dlractors " Karel Pavifbek

Michat Krzysztof Kaliciak
Filip Mikotajczyk 1
Robert Dominik Maliek
Artur Tomasz Frankiewicz
Pavel Slama

Supervisory Board

" Marek Kuchta

Recalled from the o ice

Markéta Voglova Elected to the office 27 July 2016
Markéta Voglova Recalled from the office 31 August 2016
: Miroslav Bas ; Recalled from the office 26 July 2016 |
Member Filip Mikotajczyk Elected to the office 1 September 2016

Changes in the Supenﬂsory Board m 2016 were as foIIows

Gha!rrnan ' " Raiall Mauej Trzeblnskl _ eo . B 24 Ju 3201

Vice-chairman Jacek Tomasz Podgorski Recalled from the office 24 June 2016
Member Waldemar Antoni Gabru$ Recalled from the office 24 June 2016
Member Mirostaw Jozef Kwiatkowski Recalled from the office 24 June 2016
Member Rafat Dariusz Tarka Recalled from the office 24 June 2016
Vice-chairman Artur Tomasz Frankiewicz Elected to the office 25 June 2016
Member Pavel Slama Elected to the office 25 June 2016
Chairman Robert Dominik Mattek Elected to the office 25 June 2016

Group indetification and consolidation

The Company is part of the consolidation group of UNIPETROL, a.s. (“the Group”). Pursuant to section 62(2) of Decree
No. 500/2002 Coll., the financial statements of the Company and of all entities consolidated by it have been included in the
consolidated fi nanC|a| statements of UNIPETROL, a.s. with its registered office at Praha 4, Na Pankraci 127, 140 00, ID
No. 616 72 190.
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SPOLANA a.s.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)

2 PRINCIPLES OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) and their interpretations approved by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which were adopted by
the European Union (EU) and were in force as at 31 December 2016. The financial statements have been prepared based
on historical cost, except for: derivatives, financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss, financial assets
available for sale, and investment properties stated at fair value.

The separate financial statements are compliant with all requirements of IFRSs adopted by the EU and present a true and
fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 31 December 2016, results of its operations and cash flows for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

These separate financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. As at the date of approval of the
financial statements there is no uncertainty that the Company will not be able to continue as a going concern in the
foreseeable future.

The financial statements, except for the statement of cash flows, are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Applied
accounting policies are listed in note 28.3.
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SPOLANA a.s.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. TRANSITION TO IFRS
3.1. Adoption of IFRS

The Company prepared the financial statements in accordance with IFRS in years 2005-2008, due to the fact that the
shares of the Company were traded on the Prague Stock Exchange. The trading was terminated on January 2009 and Act
on accounting as amended by former regulations did not allow usage of IFRS for consolidated companies. Therefore, the
Company prepared the financial statements according to Czech accounting standards (CAS) from the year ended 31
December 2008.

On June 2016 the sole shareholder ANWIL S.A. sold the Company to UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.o. The new sole shareholder
decided to apply IFRS for preparation of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 to unify the
practices and to ensure comparability of data within the Group.

Therefore, the Company prepared the financial statements in accordance with IFRS, described in the accounting policies
in note 28.3. and effective for accounting periods ended 31 December 2016 and later. The comparative accounting period
is the year ended 31 December 2015. For the purposes of preparation of these financial statements, an opening statement
of financial position was prepared as at 1 January 2015, i.e. at the transition date.

This note presents the main adjustments carried out by the Company in order to reconcile the statement of financial
position as at 1 January 2015 prepared in accordance with CAS and under IFRS and the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015 previously presented in accordance with CAS and IFRS.

(in thousands of CZK)

A Exemptions
IFRS 1 — First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards enables the Company to use certain
exemptions from the full retrospective application of IFRSs. The Company did not use any of these exemptions.

B Estimates

The estimates made as at 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 are in accordance with the estimates calculated in
accordance with Czech accounting standards at the same dates (appropriate adjustments were made due to different
accounting policies), except for the following items, in respect of which CAS do not require any estimates:

Investment Property — measurement

The Company used the estimates in accordance with IFRSs, reflecting conditions and terms as at 1 January 2015 i.e. the
date of transition to IFRSs, and as at 31 December 2015.

3.2 Reconciliation of the financial statements reported in accordance with CAS and with IFRSs

Reconciliation of the statement of fi nanmal posmon as at 1 January 2015 (tfansmon date)

ML Ty 7 RSt R e =5 & 1 January 2015 T
i n%ﬁﬁglf AN | ‘_rt_*.-.: ) NOTE % - ADIUSTIENTS R
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 186 015 (56 300) 129715
Investment property - 137 404 137 404
Intangible assets - 20 103 20103
Other non-current financial assets 879 - 879
186 894 101 207 288 101
Current assets
Inventories 542 880 (25 486) 517 394
Trade and other receivables 497 361 - 497 361
Cash and cash equivalents 19 258 - 19 258
1059 499 (25 486) 1034013
Total assets 1246 393 75721 1322114
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 2055 229 2 055 229
Retained earnings ~ (3318334) 41 000 (3 277 334)
_Total equity (1 263 105) 41 000 (1222 1085)
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 126 240 5344 131 584
Other non-current liabilities - 2397 2397
- 126 240 7741 133 981
Current liabilities
Trade and other liabilities 1199 800 (361 383) 838 417
Loans and borrowings 1177 471 . 1177 471
Provisions - 50 154 50 154
Deferred income 5987 (18) 5969
Other financial liabilities - 338 227 338 227
2383 258 26 980 2410 238
Total liabilities 2 509 498 34721 2 544 219
Total equity and liabilities 1246 393 75721 1322114
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SPOLANA a.s.

(in thousands of CZK)

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016

3.2. Reconciliation of the financial statements reported in accordance with CAS and with IFRSs (continued)

Reconciliation of the statement of financ

ialpasitie

n as at 31 _D_ec_ember 2015

TR

i Te 'y = e L 31 0ecombor20187 & R Bit=c il
' e LEs SRR RS | |11 ADJUSTMENTS & (L gl T RS
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 180 676 (1273) 179 403
Investment property - 70 371 70 371
~ Other non-current financial assets 879 - 879
181 555 69 098 250 653
Current assets
Inventories 565 512 (18 815) 546 697
Trade and other receivables 370923 (4 970) 365 953
Cash and cash equivalents 63 898 - 63 898
1000 333 (23 785) 976 548
Total assets 1181 888 45313 1227 201
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 3455229 - 3455 229
Retained earnings ) B (3 433 258) 36 247 (3 397 011)
Total equity 21971 - 36 247 58 218
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 155 567 5990 161 557
Other non-current liabilities - - = 2397 2397
- 155 567 8 387 163 954
Current liabilities
Trade and other liabilities 1002 565 (385 849) 616716
Provisions - 50 579 50 579
Deferred income 1785 - 1785
_ Other financial liabilities B - = 335949 3350949
- B 1004 350 679 B 1005 029
Total liabilities 1159 917 9 066 1168 983
Total equity and liabilities 1181 888 45313 1227 201

Rec
IET

.

b et

W

Statement of profit or loss

onciliation of the statement of profit and loss and othe
=T TINEAS

r comprehensive income as at 31 December 2015

Revenues 5077 231 18 376 5095 607
Cost of sales (5 012 897) 171 292 ~ (4841605)
~ Gross profit on sales N 64 334 ) 189668 254 002
Distribution expenses o T = (184 739) (184 739)
Administrative expenses - (151 993) (151 993)
Other operating income . 72207 62 890 135 097
Other operating expenses - - N (267 622) 128 007 (134 615)
Profit/(loss) from operations (131 081) 48 833 (82 248)
Finance income 75178 (60183) 14 995
Finance costs (111 801) 59377 (52 424)
Net finance income/(costs) (36 623) (806) (37 429)
Extraordinary income - o 70282 (70_252) N - -
Extraordinary costs (17 472) 17 472 -
Net extraordinary income/(costs) o - 52 780 ~ (52780) .
Loss before tax T (114 924) (4753) (119 677)
mepense ) - - ' - - -
Net loss (114 924) (4 753) (119 677)
Other comprehensive income . - =
Total net comprehensive income (114 924) (4 753) (119 677)
11
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SPOLANA a.s.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)

3.2. Reconciliation of the financial statements reported in accordance with CAS and with IFRSs (continued)

_Rer.nnr:iliaiinn of the statement of cash flows f_or the_year ended 31 December 2015

(L) . : : a3 ADJUSTMENTS FRS
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (140 572) 44 033 (96 539)
Net cash used in investing activities (35 503) (13 045) (48 548)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities 220 715 (30 828) 189 887
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 44 640 160 44 800

" Effect of exchange rate chgng_es - (160) (160)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year - - 19 258 - 19 258
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 63 898 - 63 898

The reconciliation of the statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2015 does not include adjustments
resulting from the different structure of the statement in accordance with CAS and IRFSs (under CAS interest
paid/received and dividends paid/received are included in cash flows from operating activities).

3.3. Notes to reconciliation of the financial statements reported in accordance with CAS and with IFRSs

a. Revaluation of non-current assets and impairment of non-current assets

The result of the valuation under IFRS is based on the fair value principle, which was performed at the date of the
acquisition of Unipetrol Group by PKN Orlen S.A. Group (May 2005). Based on IAS 36, the presence of impairment
indicators led to the impairment analysis and, based on this analysis, the value of non-current assets were decreased.The
Company elected to apply the optional exemption to use this previous revaluation as deemed cost at the date of transition.
The reclassification impact was recognized in retained earnings. The reclassification impact on profit as at 31 December
2015 was recognized in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income.

b. Classification and revaluation of non-current assets as investment property in compliance with IAS 40

The adjustment took into consideration the basic difference between the classifications based on CAS and IFRSs-the
different valuation model after the initial recognition of investment property. Under CAS, investment property was initally
recognized at acqusition cost. Subsequently, the investment property items were recognized at the acquisition cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Under IFRS, the investment property items were, after
initial recognition, recognized at fair value. The impact of this revaluation was recognized in retained earnings as at 1
January 2015. The revaluation impact on profit as at 31 December 2015 was recognized in the statement of profit and loss
and other comprehensive income.

c. Review of provisions

Under CAS, the Company recognized a provision for land restoration in operating expenses. Under IFRSs, the Company
discounts this provision and records a corresponding increase in the respective assets. Due to the different approach, the
amount of the provision created under CAS and under IFRS is also different. The reclassification impact on profit as at 1
January 2015 was recognized in retained earnings. The reclassification impact on profit as at 31 December 2015 was
recognized in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income.

d. Recognition fo government grants related to assets -

Under CAS, the Company recognized a government grant received in 2006 as asset and other capital contributions. Under
IFRSs, the Company presents this grant in the net amount of the asset and recognizes decreased depreciation on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the asset in profit or loss. The reclassification impact on profit as at 1 January 2015
was recognized in retained earnings. The reclassification impact on profit as at 31 December 2015 was recognized in the
statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income.

e. Reclassification of catalysts

Under CAS, the costs related to the gradual wear and tear of catalysts are presented on an accrual basis as prepaid
expenses. Under IFRSs, catalysts are recognized as assets and depreciated over their useful life, which is identical to the
period over which related expenses were deffered under CAS. This adjustment only affects the statement of financial
position.

f.  Capitalization of major spare parts, and related impairment allowances

Under CAS, the Company recognized all spare parts in inventories and creates impairment allowances. Under IFRSs,
major spare parts are capitalized as fixed assets and depreciated over their estimated useful life. The reclassification
impact on profit as at 1 January 2015 was recognized in retained earnings. The reclassification impact on profit as at 31
December 2015 was recognized in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income.

g. Capitalization of borrowing costs-

Under IFRSs, the borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of an asset are capltalized and amortized.
The reclassification impact on profit as at 1 January 2015 was recognized in retain earnings. The reclassification impact on
profit as at 31 December 2015 was recognized in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income.

h. Presentation of CO, allowances

Under CAS, the consumption of emission allowances is recognized as disposal of tangible assets. Under IFRSs, the
amount of intangible assets approximates the amount of allowances registered in the account with the Czech electricity
and gas market operator and consumption is recognized as a provision.

i. Reclassification and other differences
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SPOLANA a.s.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)

3.3. Notes to reconciliation of the financial statements reported in accordance with CAS and with IFRSs
(continued)

The following reclassifications were performed in the statement of financial position as at 1 January 2015 and as at 31
December 2015 in order to reflect the differences in the nature of some accounting items under IFRSs vs CAS:

- Reclassification of accrual on customer’s credit notes from trade liabilities to trade receivables
- Reclassification of provisions to current and non-current liabilities
- Reclassification of liabilities relating to accrued expenses and cash pool as individual items of current liabilities

Reclassifications were also performed in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2015 - the principal items are as follows:

- Reclassification of cost of sales to distribution and administrative expenses, as the statement of profit and loss under
CAS is classified by nature while the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income under IFRS is
classified by function

- Reclassification of other income and expenses (under CAS, changes in provisions and impairment allowances relating
to operating activities are recorded on a net basis)

- Reclassification of extraordinary income and expenses under CAS to other operating income and expenses

- Reclassification of foreign exchange gains and losses (under IFRS are recognized on a net basis)

The effects of the above changes on three most significant items of the statement of financial position are as follows:

Pro ntand equipment

Fair value measurement and impairmen

231479) (145 762)

a

Recognition of governments grants d (548) (434)
Provision for restoration c 9290 8935
Reclass of catalysts e 14 503 13 829
Reclass of major spare parts f 124 246 92 927
Capitalization of borrowing costs g 27 688 29 232
(56 300) {1273)

Investment

class of invemnt rope omﬁxed assets

rd nd otheliailie _

(338227) (335 949)

Reclass of cash pool liabilities to other financial liabilities i
Reclass of CO; emission allowances h (26 570) (47 440)
Reclass of grants for fixed assets to fixed assets d (548) (434)
Reclass of accrual on customer's credit notes to trade and other receivables i - . (4 970)
Reclass of accrued expenses from accruals i 18 0
Reclass of holiday accrual from current provisions c 3946 2945
Other differences i 2) (1)
(361 383) (385 849)

Reclass of CO, emission allowances

h

Investment property b 137 404 70 371
Reclass of major spare parts f (18 154) (10 694)
Reclass of catalysts e (7 332) (8 121)
“Revaluation and impairment of grounds a (45 175) 11 039
Revaluation and impairment of other fixed assets a (10 575) (11 877)
Difference in provisions for recultivation c (9 290) (8 935)
Difference in provision for emission rights c (23 584) (3 139)
Social fund i (2 397) (2 397)
41 000 36 247
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SPOLANA a.s.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
4, REVENUES

“Sales of finished goods

3688 083

5018 228

Sales of services 29 091 g, 36 467
Revenues from sales of finished goods and services, net —— 3717 184 5054 695
Sales of merchandise 20 539 22 537
Sales of raw materials — - - L = 18 375
Revenues from sales of merchandise and raw materials, net 23 106 40 912

3740 290 5 095 607

41. Revenues by assortments

oinyl chloie 1 3 1 2055 362

Caprolactam molten 1234 480 1356 503
Ammonium sulphate 542 463 716 767
Sodium hydrooxide 348 454 497 897
Caprolactam flake 124 868 241 011
Other chemical products 92789 142 262
Raw material - ammonia - 10 300
Other materials 2 567 8075
Utilities 27 897 30 963
Services 29091 36 467

3 740 290 5 095 607

Revenues from 1 individual customer in the amount of CZK 530 513 thousand represented more than 10% of the
Company's total revenues in 2016.

4.2, Revenues by geographical division

Czech Republic 819 637 1063 389

Germany 978 675 1405 422
Italy 459 853 735 976
Poland 702453 647 697
Slovakia 120 962 264 929
Turkey 147 112 191 284
Belgium 100 653 131523
Austria 48 580 122 129
Hungary 89353 121 909
Other countries - . 2 264 002 : 411 349

3 740 290 5 095 607

Revenues are based on the country in which the customer is located.

5. OPERATING EXPENSES
51. Cost of sales

Cost of finished goods and services sold (3 786923) (4 804 323)

Cost of merchandise and raw materials sold (20069) (37 282)
(3 806 992) (4 841 605)
5.2. Cost by nature
Materials and energy . . (30938231) (4275102) -
Cost of merchandise and raw materials sold (20 089) (37 282)
External services (401 920) (433 844)
Employee benefits (326 051) (295 474)
Depreciation and amortization (96 474) (86 052)
Taxes and charges (39617) (41 104)
Other (225 247) (139 890)
(4 203 309) (5 308 748)
Change in inventories (59 648) (34 827)
Cost of products and services for own use - - 30 623
Operating expenses (4 262 955)  (5312952)
Distribution expenses 126 944 184 739
Administrative expenses 171831 151 993
Other operating expenses 155 188 134 615
Cost of sales (3806 992) (4 841 605)
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SPOLANA a.s.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)

5.3. Employee benefits costs

Payroll penses (236 198) (214 302)

Future benefits expenses 807 (601)
Social security expenses {81212 (75 844)
Other employee benefils expenses (9.447) (4 727)

(326 051)

(295 474)

(228021)  (3448) (4 691) T (@8)  (236198)

Wages and salaries

Social and health insurance (79 426) (983) (794) (10) (81 213)

Social expense (9 447) - - - (9 447)

Change of employee benefits provision 807 - < - 807
(316 087) (4 431) (5 485) (48) (326 051)

Number of employees average per year 671.00 292 0.50 674.42

Number of employees as at balance sheet day 675 3 1 679

Wages and salaries (205 522) (3 900) (4 880) - (214 302)

Social and health insurance (73 385) (1284) (1 175) - (75 844)
Social expense 4727) - - - 4727)
Change of employee benefits provision (601) - - - (601)
(284 235) (5 184) (6 055) - (295 474)
Number of employees average per year 685.50 4.00 0.50 690.00
Number of employees as al balance sheet day 682 4 1 687
6. OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES
6.1. Other operating income
Reversal of receivables impairment allowances 5683 20 109
Penaities and compensations earned 1883 108 454
Revaluation of investment properties 25 345 -
Other 21472 6 534
54 493 135 097
6.2. Other operating expenses
Loss on sale of non-current non-financial assets (1 084) (4 627)
Recognition of provisions (130 000) -
Recognition of receivables impairment allowances ) (20 248) . (43 200)
Costs and losses due to removing damages : (148) - (17 472)
Donations 61) (30)
Revaluation of investment properties - (67 033)
Other (3847) (2 253)
{155 188) (134 615)
7= FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS
7.1. Finance income
Interest 285 967
Net foreign exchange gain . . 6747 13 948
Other 1 80
7033 14 995
7.2. Finance costs
Interest (6 591) (28 824)
Settiement and valuation of financial instruments s (122)
Other (4 926) (23 478)
(11 517) (52 424)
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SPOLANA a.s.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)

8. TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)

Domestic tax is calculated in accordance with Czech tax regulations at the rate of 19% in 2016 (2015: 19%) of the
estimated taxable income for the year. The deferred tax has been calculated using the tax rate approved for the years
2017 and forward i.e. 19%.

8.1. The differences between tax expense recognized in profit or loss and the amount calculated based on
the rate from profit/(loss) before tax

AP o el o TR 0 PSSR e, |CHEDI e
Loss for the year (472 656) (119 677)
Total tax credit/(expense) - -
Loss before tax (472 656) (119 677)
Income tax using domestic income tax rate 89 805 22739
Non-deductible expenses (127 908) (128 295)
Tax exempt income B9 680 115 406
Change in not recognized deferred tax assets B (51 577) (9 850)

Total tax credit/(expense) ) - - -

Effective tax rate - 5

8.2. Deferred tax

Deferred taxes result from future tax benefits and costs related to the differences between the tax basis of assets and
liabilities and the amounts reported in the financial statements. The deferred taxes have been calculated using the tax rate
expected to apply to periods when the respective asset is realized or liability is settled (i.e. 19% in 2016 and onward).
Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are offsct when there is a lcgally enforceable right to sct off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same tax authority.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for tax losses and deductible temporary differences carried forward to the extent that
realization of the related tax benefit through the future taxable profit is probable based on financial projections for years
2017 - 2021.

In the calculation of deferred tax assets as at 31 December 2016 the Company has not recognized unused tax losses in
the amount of CZK 1 048 443 thousand due to the unpredictability of future taxable income (31 December 2015: CZK
762 169 thousand). These unrecognized tax losses will expire by the end of 2021.
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SPOLANA a.s.

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)
EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
9.1. Changes in property, plant and equipment
Carid Buildings and. Machinery and  Vehicles and ‘Canstruction in LAy
! canstructions equipment other progress 1%
01/01/2016
Net book value
Gross book value 111 864 43 032 94 593 - 16 024 265 513
Accumulated depreciation - (41 477) (44 633) - - (86 110)
111 864 1555 49 960 - 16 024 179 403
increasel/(decrease) net
Investment expenditures - 4203 15 579 - 70088 89 870
Depreciation - (64 672) (37 289) 301 5312 (96 348)
Reclassifications - 66 682 36114 - (54 993) 47 803
Sale - . (s01) - (301)
Liquidation - (188) (1293) - - (1 481)
Other increases/(decreases) s (800) - - (800)
31/12/2016
Net book value 111 864 7 580 62 271 - 36 431 218 146
Gross book value 111 864 113 729 144 193 - 31119 400 905
Accumulated depreciation - (106 148) (81 922) - 5312 (182 759)
111 864 7 580 62 271 - 36 431 218 146
01/01/2015
Net book value
Gross book value 111 864 1815 53 652 281 20 165 187 777
111 864 1815 53 652 281 20 165 187 777
increase/(decrease) net
investment expenditures - 26 070 11 642 - 61678 99 390
Depreciation - (41 477) (44 633) - (86 110)
Reclassifications - 15 147 50 672 - (65 819) -
Sale 3 = (654) 269 - (385)
Liquidation = - (2 744) (550) - (3 294)
Other increases/(decreases) - - (17 975) - - (17 975)
31/12/2015
Net book value 111 864 1555 49 960 - 16 024 179 403

Main investment expenditures in 2016 were spent for construction of ammonium sulphate granulation line (CZK 12 640
thousand), drum dryer for ammonium sulphate production (CZK 9 460 thousand), replacement of concrete structure
through steel construction in ammonium sulphate production (CZK 3 820 thousand) and new graphite heat exchanger in
sulphuric acid production (CZK 3 130 thousand).

In January 2016, the Company signed a loan agreement for an unbinding credit line up to CZK 200 000 thousand with
* UNIPETROL, a.s. The credit line is secured by a mortgage created to the Company’s land situated outside production unit *
of the enterprises for PVC, Caprolactam and EVH. In July 2016 the loan was paid. At the date of compilation of the

financial statements, the mortgage is still in effect.

The Company reviews useful lives of property, plant and equipment and introduces adjustments to depreciation charges
prospectively according to its accounting policy. Should the depreciation policy from the previous year be applied, the
depreciation expense for 2016 would be higher by CZK 14 898 thousand.

As at 31 December 2016 in accordance with International Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of assets” the Company
verified the existence of impairment indicators. The Company identified impairment indicators of both internal and external
nature. The Company’s operating profits for 2016 were below the forecasted level. Following the change in macro-
economic conditions on petrochemical market comparing to previously approved mid-term plan, the new financial
projections for the years 2017-2021 were prepared by the Company.

The existence of impairment indicators led to an analysis of impairment of the Company’s tangible and intangible non-
current assets' (with the exception of CO2 allowances) based on the most recent available financial projections for the
years 2017-2021 adjusted to exclude the impact of capital expenditures enhancing the assets’ performance.

Based on the test results it was confirmed that there is no need to recognize further impairment charge to the tangible and
intangible assets of Company as at 31 December 2016.
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SPOLANA a.s.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)

9.1. Changes in property, plant and equipment (continued)

The structure of the discount rates applied in the testing for impairment of assets as at 31 December 2016 and as
at 31 December 2015

S __-___é—‘_.—‘é:_ 2 = s =t AT = T
Cost of equity E 8.56%
Cost of debt after tax * 1.56%
Capital structure 83.08%
Nominal discount rate 13T%
Long term inflation rate 1.98%

Periods of analysis adopted for the analysis
The period of analysis was established on the basis of remaining useful life of the essential assets. Periods of analysis
adopted for the analysis as at 31 December 2016 was 10 years (31 December 2015: 10 years).

Sensitivity analysis of the value in use

The effects of change +/(-)5% in operating profit plus depreciation and amortization (known as EBITDA) and change +/(-)
0.5 pp in the discount rate, do not result in recognition of impairment allowance in the Company as at 31 December 2016
and as at 31 December 2015.

9.2 Other information on property, plant and equipment

S TTIYAR T 1 ) S
- —yod £ ik i

all fully de

and equipment

=3l

k value of

The gr_os boo

precited property, plan

10. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

MF T == ——— T ————

2 }
137 404

Atthe beginning of the year

Reclassification to property, plant and equipment (85 667) -
Fair value measurement 25345 (67 033)
increase 25345 -

decrease - (67 033)

30 049 70 371

Rental income amounted to CZK 12 010 thousand in 2016 (2015: CZK 17 168 thousand). Operating costs related to
investment property amounted to CZK 4 210 thousand in 2016 (2015: CZK 10 299 thousand).
10.1. Fair value of investment property measurement

Investment property as at 31 December 2016 included the buildings owned by the Company and leased to third parties,
which fair value was estimated depending on the characteristics based revenue approach.

In the revenue approach the calculation was based on the discounted cash flow method. 10 year period forecasts were
applied in the analysis. The discount rate used reflects the rélation, as expected by the buyer, between annual revenue
from an investment property and expenditures required to purchase investment property. Forecasts of discounted cash
flows relating to the property consider arrangements included in all rent agreements as well as external data, e.g. current
market rent charges for similar property, in the same location, technical conditions, standard and designed for similar
purposes (investment property valued under the revenue approach belong to Level 3 as defined by IFRS 7). The discount
rate of 8.96% was used for the calculation of the investment property fair value.

3111212016 30049 30049 - 30049

31122015 70871 70371 - 70 371
10.2. Sensitivity analysis of changes in fair value of investment property classified under Level 3 fair value

Analysis of the influence of potential changes in the fair value of investment property on profit before tax in relation to a
hypothetical change in discount rate:

Change in discount rate
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SPOLANA a.s.

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)
11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
111, Changes in intangible assets
g R RIE  CIE R Y e m ity Licences, patents  Assets under :'."Oo.imhsloﬁ ~ Otherintangible
AL o] o T andtademarks  developmont. illcmco_____ . assvts
01/01/2016
Net book value
Gross book value - . (58) - : (58)
Accumulated amortization - - 58 . - 58
increase/(decrease) net
Investment expenditures . - 126 14 175 - 14 301
Amortization - - (126) - - (126)
Reclassifications = - - - - -
Other increases/(decreases) - - - (14 175) - (14 175)
31/12/2016
Net book value - - - g - :
Gross book value - - 68 - - 68
Accumulated amortization - - (68) - - (68)
01/01/2015
Net book value
Gross book value - - - 20 103 - 20 103
- - - 20 103 - 20 103
increasel/(decrease) net
Investment expenditures - - (58) 1281 - 1223
Amortization - - 58 - - 58
Other increases/(decreases) = 2 - (21 384) - (21 384)
31/12/2015
Net book value - - - - - -
11.2. Other information on intangible assets

The Company reviews useful lives of intangible assets and introduces an adjustment to amortization charges prospectively
according to its accounting policy. Should the amortization rates from the previous year be applied, amortization expense
for 2016 would be higher by CZK 27 thousand.

11.3. CO. emission allowances

Based on the Czech National Allocation Scheme for the years 2013-2020 the Company was to obtain CO; emission
allowances free of charge. During the year ended 31 December 2016 the Company obtained CO, emission allowances in
the amount of 132 782 tons.

01/01/2016 - -

Granted free of charge for 2016 17 897 132782
Settlement for 2015 (32 072) (239 568)
Purchase/(Sale), net 14 175 106 786
Estimated annual consumption 2016 38 106 226 542

As at 31 December 2016 the market value of one EUA allowance (European Union Emission Allowance) amounted to
EUR 6.54 (31 December 2015: EUR 8.22).

CO2 emission allowances acquired and sold by the Company are included in the statement of cash flows, under investing
activities in Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and lntanglble assets and Proceeds from dlsposals of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, respectively.

12, OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

879

The Company had equity investments of CZK 879 thousand as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: CZK 879
thousand) which represent ownership interests in TIU-PLAST a.s. that do not have a quoted market price and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and therefore are carried at acquisition cost less any impairment losses.
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SPOLANA a.s.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)

13. INVENTORIES

SR ) = 3

Raw materials 288 213 241 471

Work in progress 126 910 121 884
Finished goods 78 065 144 318
Merchandise 112 118
Spare parts 44 224 38 906
Inventories, net 538 524 546 697
Impairment allowances of inventories to net realizable value 89 086 87 245
Inventories, gross 627 610 633 942
13.1. Changes in impairment allowances of inventories to net realizable value

Atte bennng of the year ] = 87 245 150 374

Recognition / Reversal 2754) (27 093)
Usage g {6 293) (36 036)
Reclass from non-current to current 10 848 -

89 086 87 245

14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables 320105 325 063

_ Other ) i e 113 293
Financial assets B did 320 218 325 356
Other taxation, duty, social security receivables 83313 25 051
Prepaid inventories 14 027 8 895

__Prepayments and deferred cosls - 19 401 6 651
Non-financial assets 116 741 40 597
Receivahbles, net 436 959 365 953
Receivables impairment allowance 59 262 42 422
Receivables, gross 496 251 408 375

Trade receivables result primarily from sales of finished goods. The management considers that the carrying amount of
trade receivables approximates their fair value. The average credit period on sales of goods is 33 days. Trade receivables
overdue bear an interest based on terms agreed in the selling contracts.The Company’s exposure to credit and currency
risk related to trade and other receivables is disclosed in note 22.4. and detailed information about receivables from
related parties is presented in note 26.

15. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cashpool

16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on hand and in bank 9798 63 898

9798 63 898
inc!. restricted cash 8 996 9003

Restricted cash is used to create a provision for the restoration of fly-ash dump and toxic waste dumps. Funds on
mandatory deposit accounts may only be used with the consent of the Central Bohemian Regional Authority.

17. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

17.1. Share capital

The issued capital of the Company as at 31 December 2016 amounted to CZK 3 455 229 thousand (31 December 2015:
CZK 3 455 229 thousand). This represents 29 636 460 (31 December 2015: 29 636 460) bearer ordinary shares, each

with a nominal value of CZK 116 and 1 500 bearer ordinary shares, each with nominal value of CZK 11 600. All issued
shares have been fully paid and bear voting rights proportional to their nominal value.

hareoldrs’ stture

29 637 960 3455 229 360 i 100%
29 637 960 3 455 229 360 100%

UNIPETROL RPA, 5.1.0.
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SPOLANA a.s.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)

17.2. Retained earnings

The shareholder decided to allocate the loss for 2015 at the amount of CZK 119 677 thousand to retained earnings.

17.3. Equity management policy

Equity management is performed on the Group level in order to protect the Group’s ability to continue its operations as a
going concern while maximizing returns for shareholders.

The Company monitors the equity debt ratio (net financial leverage). As at 31 December 2016 and as at 31 December
2015 Company’s financial leverage amounted to -107.3% and 467.3%, respectively.

Net financial leverage = net debt/equity (calculated as at the end of the period) x 100%
Net debt =non-current loans and borrowings + current loans and borrowings + cash pool liabilities - cash and cash equivalents

17.3.1. Net debt

Ch on hand an in bk ] ] 9 79 ] 63 898

Cash pool liabilities (454 317) (335 949)
(444 519) (272 051)

31/12/2015 ) - - 546697 365953 616716 ' 295934

31/12/2016 538 524 436 959 859 358 116 125_
Change from statement of financial position 8173 (71 006) 242 642 179 809
Adjustments

Movements in non-current liabilities - - 569 569
Movements in investing liabilities - - 8 827 8 827
Change from statement of cash flows 8173 (71 006) 252 038 189 205

18. PROVISIONS

Environmental provision 201395 156 348 - - 291 395 156 348

Jubilee bonuses and retirement benefits provision 3437 4834 580 - 4027 4834
Provision for CO, emission allowances = - 38107 50 579 38 107 50 579
Other provision 375 375 - - 375 375

295 207 161 557 38 697 50 579 333 904 212 136

Change in provisions in 2016

01/01/2016 1566 348 4834 : 50 579 375 212136

Recognition 134 203 - 38 107 - 172310
Discounting 844 - - - 844
Usage = (512) (32072) - (32 584)
Reversal - (285) (18 507) - (18 802)

291 395 4 027 38 107 375 333 904

Change in provisions in 2015

01/01/2015 126 976 4233 50 153 375 181737

Recognition i 26 071 1118 50 579 i - 77768
Discounting 3301 - - - 3301
Usage = (517) (48 804) - (49 321)
Reversal - - (1.349) - (1.349)
156 348 4834 50 5§79 375 212136
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SPOLANA a.s.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)

18.1. Environmental provision

Under the environmental provision the Company has the provision for land restoration created as a result of the legal
obligation to restore the fly-ash deposits and toxic waste dump after it is discontinued, which is expected in 2019 in case of
fly-ash deposits and in 2024 in case of toxic waste dump. The provision amounted to CZK 128 million as at
31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: CZK 124 million).

Additionally, the Company has the provision for liquidation and restoration of an electrolysis facility which is expected to
occur after the termination of the operation of the current amalgam electrolysis facility in 2017 in the amount of CZK 163
million included as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: CZK 33 million). Significant increase of the provision was
recognized in 2016 based on change of preferred alternate solution and more detailed calculation prepared within the
scope of change project at the end of 2016.

18.2. Provision for jubilee bonuses and retirement benefits

The Company realizes the program of paying out retirement benefits and jubilee bonuses in line with remuneration
policies in force. The jubilee bonuses are paid to employees after the elapse of a defined number of years in service.
Retirement benefits are paid as a one-time payment at retirement. The amount of retirement benefits as well as jubilee
bonuses depends on the number of years of service. The base for the calculation of the provision for an employee is the
expected benefit which the Company is obliged to pay in accordance with internal regulations.

The present value of these obligations is estimated at the end of each reporting year and adjusted if there are any material
indications impacting the value of the obligations. The accrued liabilities equal discounted future payments, considering
employee rotation.

Employment benefit provisions for retirement and anniversary benefits received by employees were created using discount
rates in the range 0.56% in 2016 (2015: 0.54%), assumptions used were based on the Collective Agreement.

18.2.1. Change in employee benefits obligations

At the beginning of the year 3647 2934 1187 1299 4233

Interest expenses - 504 - 143 - 647
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes - 597 - (126) - 471
financial assumptions - 597 - (126) - 471
Past employment costs (446) - 181 - (295) -
Payments under program (380) (388) (132) (129) (512) (517)
2821 3647 1206 1187 4027 4834

The carrying amount of employee benefits liabilities is identical to their present value as at 31 December 2016 and
as at 31 December 2015.

18.2.2, Division of employee benefits liabilities by employees

eRepuinc

4 027 4834

18.2.3. Geographical division of employee benefits liabilities
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SPOLANA a.s.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)

18.2.4. Sensitivity analysis to changes in actuarial assumptions

-r-.,—‘——,l—-.-.'--uﬂ ey
i ™

=4

Demographic assumptions (+) ] 0.5pp (106) (35)

staff turnover rates, disability and early retirement 0.5pp (106) (35)
Financial assumptions (+) 0.5pp (109) (45)
discount rate 0.5pp (109) (45)
{215) (80)

Demographic assumptions (-) -0.5pp 113 37
staff turnover rates, disability and early retirement -0.5pp 113 37
Financial assumptions (-) -0.5pp 116 49
discount rate -0.5pp 116 49
229 86

Demographic assumptions (+) o - 0.5pp (144) o (2)

staff turnover rates, disability and early retirement 0.5pp (144) (42)
Financial assumptions (+) 0.5pp (135) (39)
discount rate 0.5pp (135) (39)
(279) (81)

Demographic assumptions (-} -0.5pp 153 45
staff turnover rates, disability and early retirement -0.5pp 153 45
Financial assumptions (-} -0.5pp 145 42
discount rate -0.5pp 145 42
298 87

18.2.5. Employee benefits maturity and payments of liabilities analysis
18.2.5.1. Maturity of employee benefits analysis

Less than one year 266 475 323 343
Between one and three years 504 620 149 178 853 798
Between three and five years 302 543 125 148 427 691
Later than five years 1748 2008 608 518 2358 2527
2 821 3 647 1206 1187 4 027 4834
Weighted average duration of liability 11

18.2.5.2. Ageing of employee benefits payments analysis

270 343 600 663

Less than one year
Between one and three years 580 204 782 839
Between three and five years 410 216 221 626 701
Later than five years 8530 3276 3626 11806 12 951
9 800 10 760 4014 4 394 13 814 15 154
18.2.6. Total employee benefits expenses recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income

In profit and loss

Interest expenses - (647)
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes . a - . (471)
financial assumption - (471)
Past employment costs 295 -
Payments under program 512 517
807 (601)

Provisions for employee benefits recognized in profit or loss were allocated as follows:

Cost of sales . B - (447)
Administrative expenses 807 (154)
807 (601)

Based on current legislation, the Company is obliged to pay contributions to the national pension insurance. These costs
are recognized as expenses on social security and health insurance. The Company does not have any other commitments
in this respect. Additional information about the retirement benefits is in note 28.3.18.2.
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SPOLANA a.s.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)

18.3. Provision for CO2 emission allowances

The provision for CO, emission allowances is created for estimated CO> emission allowances in the reporting period.

19. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Cash pool - - 454 317 335949 454 317 335 949
Other . 2966 2397 = = 2966 2397
2966 2397 454 317 335 949 457 283 338 346

Based on a loan agreement with the company UNIPETROL, a.s. (with ANWIL S.A. in 2015), the Company may utilize
current unsecured loans in the form of overdrafts (cash pool) or loans. Interest is paid on the first working day after the
close of the reporting period. Its total amount, including accrued interest, was CZK 454 317 thousand as at 31 December
2016 (31 December 2015: CZK 335 949 thousand). The interest rates are based on appropriate inter-bank rates and the
fair value of the loans approximated its carrying amount.

20. TRADE AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Trade liabilities 800 238 550 636
Investment liabilities 17 088 25915
Other o R B L TRy 483
Financial liabilities o 818 106 - 577034
Prepayments for deliveries 1740 653
Payroll liabilities 14 605 13412
Other taxation, duties, social security and other benefits 12 811 . 10495
Accruals 12097 15122
holiday pay accrual 3664 2946

wages accrual - - 8433 12176
Non-financial liabilities 41 253 39 682
859 358 616 716

Management considers that the carrying amount of trade and other liabilities and accruals approximate their fair value.

21. DEFERRED INCOME

Other ) 1833
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SPOLANA a.s.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISKS

22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
221. Financial instruments by category and class

Financial assets
31/12/2016

=

Unquoted shares 12. 879 879

Trade receivables 14. 320 105 - 320105
Cash pool 15. 3585 - 3585
Cash and cash equivalents 16. 9798 - 9798
Other 14. 113 - 113

333 601 879 334 480

31/12/2015

Unquoted shares 12 - 879 879

Trade receivables 14. 325 063 - 325 063
Cash and cash equivalents 16. 63 898 - 63 898
Other 14. 293 - 293

389 254 879 390 133

Financial liabilities
31/12/2016

Trade liabilties 20 800 239 800 238

Investment liabilities 20. 17 088 17 088
Cash pool 19. 454 317 454 317
Other 19,20, 3744 3744
1275 388 1275 388

31/12/2015

Trade liabilities . 20. . 550 636 550 636

Investment liabilities 20. 25915 25915
Cash pool 19. 335 949 335 949
Other 19,,20. 2 880 2880
' 915 380 915 380
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SPOLANA a.s.

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)
22.2. Income, costs, gain and loss in the separate statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income

Interest income - 285

Interest costs - - (6 591) (6 591)
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) - 10 801 (4 054) 6747

(Recognition)/reversal of receivables impairment
allowances recognized in:

other operating income/(expenses) - (14 555) - (14 555)
Other - 1 (4 082) (4 081)
- {3 468) (14 727) (18 195)

other, excluded from the scope of IFRS 7
Provisions discounting (844)
(844)

2015

Interest income - 967 - 967

Interest costs - - (28 824) (28 824)
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) - 12158 1790 13 948

(Recognition)/reversal of receivables
impairment allowances recognized in:

other operating income/(expenses) - (23 091) - (23 091)
Settlement and valuation of financial instruments (122) - - (122)
Other . 80 (20 177) (20 097)

(122) (9 886) (47 211) (57 219)

other, excluded from the scope of IFRS 7
Provisions discounting (3.301)
(3 301)

22.3. Fair value measurement

Financial assets . . 5
Unquoted shares 12. nla 879 n/a 879

Trade receivables 14. 320105 320105 325 063 325 063
Cash pool 15, 3 585 3585 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 3 16. 9798 v798 63 898 63 898
Other 14. 113 ) 113 203 203
333601 334 480 389 254 390 133

Financial liabilities
Trade liabilities 20 800 239 800 239 550 636 550 636
Investment liabilities 20. 17 088 17 088 25915 25 915
Cash pool 19. 454 317 454 317 335 949 3356 949
Other 19,20, 3744 3744 2880 2880
1275 388 1275 388 915 380 915 380

Financial instruments for which fair value cannot be measured reliably

As at 31 December 2016 and as at 31 December 2015, the Comapny held unquoted shares in entity amounting to
CZK 879 thousand, for which fair value cannot be reliably measured, due to the fact that there are no active markets for
these entities nor comparable transactions of the same type of instruments. The above mentioned shares were recognized
as other non-current financial assets and measured at acquisition cost less impairment allowances. As at 31 December
2016 there are no binding decisions relating to the means and dates of disposal of those assets.

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of financial instruments is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flows analysis using prices from observable current market transactions and dealer quotes for similar
instrument.

Loans and receivables

The management considers that the carrying amount of loans and receivables approximates their fair value.

Finacial liabilities valued at amortized cost

The management considers that the carrying amount of financial liabilities valued at amortized cost approximates their fair
value.
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SPOLANA a.s.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)

22.4. Risks identification

The Company’'s activities are exposed to many different types of risk. Risk management is mainly focused on the
unpredictability of financial markets and aims to minimize any potential negative impacts on the Company’s financial
results.

22.41. Commodity risk

The Company is exposed to commodity price risk resulting from changes in raw material, mainly ethylene, vacuum salt,
cyclohexanone, ammonia and sulphur. Management addresses these risks by means of a commodity, supplier and client risk
management. The risk of raw material unavailability is also secured by commercial Contingent business interruption
insurance.

22,42, Currency risk

A currency risk arises most significantly from the exposure of trade receivables and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies, and the foreign currency denominated loans and borrowings. Foreign exchange risk regarding trade
receivables and receivables is mostly covered by natural hedging of trade and receivables and liabilities denominated in
the same currencies. Hedging instruments (forwards, currency swaps) also could be used, to cover significant foreign
exchange risk exposure of trade receivables and liabilities not covered by natural hedging.

Currency structure of financial instruments denomlnated in main foreign currencies as at 31 December 2016

Financial assets

Trade receivables 1296 8936 1026 275 681
Cash and cash equivalents 13 4 - 184
1308 8 940 1026 275 B65

Financial liabilities
Trade liabilities 146 3522 - 06 046
Investment liabilities - 32 - 875
146 3 554 - 96 921

Currency structure of flnanclal |nstruments denommated in main forelgn currencies as at 31 December 2015

Financial assets

Trade receivables 517 9242 706 270 577
Cash and cash equivalents 5 1580 10 42 997
522 10 822 716 313 574

Financial liabilities
Trade liabilities 684 2524 650 88 688
Cash pool 52 989 - - 335949
Investment liabilities = 4 - 106
© 53673 2 528 ’ 650 424 743

Sensitivity analysis for currency changes risk

The influence of potential changes in carrying amounts of financial instruments as at 31 December 2016 and as at
31 December 2015 arising from hypothetical changes in exchange rates of relevant currencies in relation to” functional
currency on rofn before tax:

variatlonf exchange es +15%
Influence on profit before tax 1068 (50 547) 21827 33624 3946 247 26 841 (16 676)

At variation of currency rates by -15%, sensitivity analysis assumes the same value as in the table above only with the
opposite sign.

Variations of currency rates described above were calculated based on the historical volatility of particular currency rates
and analysts’ forecasts.

Sensitivity of financial instruments for currency risk was calculated as the difference between the initial carrying amount of
financial instruments (excluding derivative instruments) and their potential carrying amount calculated using assumed
increases/(decreases) in currency rates. In the case of derivative .instruments, the influence of currency rate variations on
fair value was examined at a constant level of interest rates. The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts is
determined based on the discounted future cash flows of the transactions, calculated based on the difference between the
forward rate and the transaction price.
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SPOLANA a.s.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)

22.4.3. Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to the risk of volatility of cash flows arising from interest rate loans, bank loans and cash pool
based on floating interest rates.

Interest rate structure of flnancml instruments:

’Y f'l.. |!":"‘""F b h"‘ -F “. H"'IZSF' e ‘t

el QRS R | T atia2ons 3112

e

016 311122016 3111212016

Flnanclal assets

Cash pool 3 585 - - - 3585 -
3 585 - - - 3 585 -

Financial liabilities
Cash pool 454 317 - - 335 949 454 317 335 949
454 317 - - 335 949 454 317 335949

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk
The influence of ﬁnanC|al |nstruments on profit before tax due to changes |n S|gn|f cant interest rates:
— 7 3 = Lo — Y m——T -!—: frai?’;-z(:. -{r

PRIBOR +0 5 pp +0 5 pp (2 254] -
WIBOR +0.5 pp +0.5 pp - (1.680}
(2 254) (1 680)
The above interest rates variations were calculated based on observations of interest rates fluctuations in the current and
prior year as well as on the basis of available forecasts.
The sensitivity analysis was performed on the basis of instruments held as at 31 December 2016 and as at
31 December 2015. The influence of interest rates changes was presented on annual basis.

22.4.4. Liquidity and credit risk

Liquidity risk

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities using the earliest date on which the Company can be

required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
i anal snsof flnanclal |IabI|IIeS .

Cash pooal - undlscounted value . 454 317

Trade liabilities 20. 800 239 - BOD 239 80O 238
Investment liabilities 20. 17 088 . 17 088 17 088
Other 18,20 779 2 965 3744 3744

1272423 2 965 1275 388 1275 388

Cash pool - undlscounted va|ue 19. 335 949 - 335949 335 949

Trade liabilities 20 550 636 ; - 550 636 x 550 636
Investment liabilities 20 25915 - 25915 25915
Other 19.,20. 483 2 397 2 880 2 880

912 983 2397 915 380 915 380

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate liquid funds, borrowing
facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and liabilities.

Credit risk

The Company has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. The
Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the statement of financial
position are net of impairment losses, estimated by the Company’s management based on prior experience and their
assessment of the credit status of its customers.

The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties
and customers.

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Company. The Company has adopted a policy of dealing only with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient
collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. This information is supplied
by independent rating agencies where available and, if not available, the Company uses other publicly available financial
information and its own trading records to rate its major customers.

The Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value
of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits
that are reviewed and approved by the management. Before accepting any new customer, the Company uses its own or
an external credit scoring system to assess a potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. As
at 31 December 2016, none of the customers represented more than 15% of the total balance of the trade receivables.
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SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)

22.4.4. Liquidity and credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas.
Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of debtors and, where appropriate, credit guarantee
insurance cover is purchased or sufficient collateral on debtor’s assets obtained.

The Company does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties
having similar characteristics. The Company defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are related
entities. The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks
with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of
financial position.

Based on the analysis of receivables the counterparties were divided into two groups:

- Group | — counterparties with a good or very good history of cooperation in the current year,

- Group Il — other counterparties.

22.44. Liquidity and credit risk risk (continued)
Division of not past due receivables

o ——T --__ .‘. 4-4||a.[.| A b=
Graup| 207 342 202 130
Group Il - I
297 342 298 830

Ageing analy5|s of receivables past due but not impaired

L e = I i e e

Up to 1 month 22 861
From 1 to 3 months 5
From 3 to 6 months 10

From 6 to 12 months a =]

Change in |mpa|rment allowances of trade and other recelvables

R R S Lt e

Thia - d AR ISt L.:.I'I-.L“ul l".é'.h ) bl . = d
Al the beginning of the year 42 422 178 350
Recognition 20 248 43200
Reversal {5 693) (20 109)
Usage (484) (157 993)
Foreign exchange differences 2778 (1.026)

59 292 42 422

Company management believes that the risk of impaired financial assets is reflected by recognition of an impairment.

The Company sets impairment charges based on analysis of customers’ creditworthiness and ageing of receivables. In
determining the recoverability of trade receivable, the Company considers any change in the credit quality of the debtor
from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the
customer base being large and unrelated. Accordingly, the management considers that there is no further credit risk
allowance required in excess of the allowance for impairment charges.

Increases and reversals of impairment allowances in respect of the principal amount of trade and other receivables are
included in other operating expense or income and in respect of interest for delayed payments in finance costs or income.

22.45. Emission allowances risk

The Company monitors the emission allowances granted to the Company under the National Allocation Plan and CO,
emissions planned. The Company might enter into transactions on the emission allowances market in order to cover
shortages or utilize any excess of emission allowances over the required amount.
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OTHER EXPLANATORY NOTES

23. LEASE
23.1. The Company as a lessee
Operating lease

At the balance sheet date, the Company is a lessee under non-cancellable operating lease arrangements.
Future minimum lease payments under non- cancellable operating lease arrangements were as follows:

: Tiel == e I M 3111212016, _ _ 31272016 |
Less than one year 3 895 8124
Between one and five years ; 6178 10 073

10 073 18 197

The Company leases railway cars, PSA unit for the production of liquid nitrogen and other vehicles under operating
leases. Lease payments are adjusted annually to reflect market conditions. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
Payments recognized as an expense were as follows:

R - GRS S SRR s e T [y B SRR
Non-cancellable operating Iease 39 820 40 852
23.2. The Company as a lessor

As at 31 December 2016 and as at 31 December 2015 the Company did not possess any financial or operating lease
agreements as a lessor.

24. INVESTMENT EXPENDITURES INCURRED AND FUTURE COMMITMENTS RESULTING FROM SIGNED
INVESTMENT CONTRACTS

The total value of investment expenditures including borrowing costs amounted to CZK 86 902 thousand as at
31 December 2016 and CZK 99 332 thousand as at 31 December 2015, including environmental expenditures in amount
of CZK 9 300 thousand and CZK 7 271 thousand, respectively.

As at 31 December 2016 the value of future commitments resulting from contracts signed to this date amounted to
CZK 219 445 thousand (31 December 2015: CZK 54 587 thousand).

25, GUARANTEES AND SECURITIES

Past environmental liabilities

The responsibility for environmental impacts occurring before the establishment of the joint-stock company was originally
assumed by the state through the National Property Fund and later on after the cancellation of the National Property Fund,
by the Ministry of Finance. The state issued a guarantee totalling CZK 8 159 000 thousand for the performance of
redevelopment work. The guarantee is meant to cover expenses associated with the removal of pollution arising before the
Company’s privatisation (i.e. before 1 May 1992). The guarantee relates to environmenat projects explicitly stated in the
appropriate, contract. Funds amounting to CZK 5594 931 thousand were invested within the guarantee as at 31
December 2016.

The Company’'s management did not identify any environmental |mpacts that would not be covered by the above
guarantees.

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
26.1. Material transactions concluded by the Company with related parties

In 2016 and in 2015 there were no transactions concluded by the Company with related parties on other than arm'’s length
terms.
26.2. Transactions with key management personnel

In 2016 and in 2015 the Company did not grant to key management personnel and their relatives any advances,
borrowings, loans, guarantees and commitments or other agreements obliging them to render services to the Company
and related parties. In 2016 and in 2015 there were no significant transactions concluded with members of the Board of
Directors, the Supervisory Board, their spouses, siblings, descendants, ascendants or their other relatives.

26.3. Transactions with related parties concluded by key management personnel

In 2016 and in 2015 members of the key management personnel submitted statements that they have not concluded any
transaction with related parties.
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26.4, Transactions and balances of settlements of the Company with related parties

The ultimate controlling party is Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A., which held 62.99% of shares in the parent company
UNIPETROL, a.s. in 2016 and 2015.

[T T NI At T T
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Sales - 279732 3765 354 943

Purchases - 174103 362 271 903 977
Finance costs 2 501 7241 8 -

Current financial assets
Trade and other receivables - 6399 384 16 596
Trade and other liabilities, including loans 454 325 5303 23 209 423 409

Sales 246 894 4088 516 455
Purchases 316 095 176 687 1 563 346
Finance costs 32 591 " u

Trade and other receivables 5396 391 13 490

Trade and other liabilities, including loans 347 729 20 882 269 509
27. REMUNERATION PAID AND DUE OR POTENTIALLY DUE TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE

SUPERVISORY BOARD AND OTHER MEMBERS OF KEY EXECUTIVE PERSONNEL

The Board of Direcors’s, the Supervisory Board's and other key executive personnel's remuneration includes short-term
employee benefits, retirement benefits, other long-term employee benefits and termination benefits paid, due and
potentially due during the period.

27.1. Key management personnel and statutory bodies’ members’ compensation

(9 664) T - 10 592) = (647)

Remuneraion of crrent yea >
Paid for previous year (3 987) - (2418) -
Potentially due to be paid in the following year (4 037) - (3 987) -

Further detailed information regarding remuneration of key management personnel is inciuded in note 5.3.

27.2. Bonus system for key executive personnel

- In 2016 the key executive personnel was participating in the annual MBO bonus system (management by objectives). The
regulations applicable to the Management Board (members of Board of Directors and Executives), directors directly
reporting to the Management Boards of entities and other key positions have certain common features. The persons
subject to the above mentioned systems are remunerated for the accomplishment of specific goals set at the beginning of
the bonus period by the Supervisory Board for the Management Board Members and by the Management Board members
for the key executive personnel. The bonus systems are structured in such way, so as to promote the cooperation between
individual employees in view to achieve the best possible results for the Company. The goals so-said are qualitative or
quantitative (measurable) and are accounted for following the end of the year for which they were set, on the rules adopted
in the applicable Bonus System Regulations. Regulation gives the possibility to promote employees, who significantly
contribute to the achieved results generated by the Company.
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SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)
28. ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

28.1. Impact of IFRS amendments and interpretations on separate financial statements

28.1.1. Binding amendments to IFRSs and interpretations

The amendments to the standards and IFRS interpretations, in force from 1 January 2016 until the date of publication of
these separate financial statements had no impact on the foregoing separate financial statements.

28.1.2. IFRSs, amendments and interpretations to IFRSs endorsed by the European Union, not yet effective
—— S— ——PosaE RS o T

Standards and Interpretatior y tho EU__

New standard IFRS 9 Financial Instruments impact*
New standard IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers impact**

28.1.3. Standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by International Accounting Standards Board,

waiting for approval of the European Union

o T TR 1 LA, Bl T e R
New standard IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts no impact expected
Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates: Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate of Joint Venture no impact expected
IFRS 16 - Leasing impact***
Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses no impact expected
Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure initiative no impact expected
Amendments to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers no impact expected
Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions no impact expected
Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Finance instrumenis with IFRS 4 Insurance contracts no impact expected
Improvements to IFRS (2014-2016) no impact expected
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration no impact expected
Al no impact expected

made,

**At the time of the implementation, i.e. on 1 January 2017, the impact of the new IFRS 15 will depend on the specific facts and conditions of the contracts
with customers, to which the Company will be a party.

***At the time of implementation, the impact of the new IFRS 16 will depend on the specific facts and

circumstances relating to the lease contracts, to which the Company will be a party.

28.2. Functional currency and presentation currency of financial statements

These separate financial statements are presented in Czech crowns (CZK), which is the Company’'s presentation and
functional currency. All financial information presented in CZK has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

28.3. Applied accounting policies
28.3.1. Transactions in foreign currency

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign
*currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the -
transaction.

At the end of the reporting period:

- foreign currency monetary items including units of currency held by the Company as well as receivables and liabilities
due in defined or definable units of currency are translated using the closing rate, i.e. spot exchange rate as at the end
of the reporting period,

- non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate
at the date of the transaction; and

- non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different from

those at which they were translated on initial recognition as finance income or expense in the period in which they arise,

except for monetary items which hedge the currency risk are accounted for in accordance with cash flow hedge accounting
principles.

28.3.2. Revenues

Revenues from sales (from operating activity) include revenues that relate to core activities, i.e. activities for which the
Company was founded, revenues are recurring and are not of incidental character.

Revenues from sales are recognised when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the sale transaction will flow to the Company and the costs incurred or to be incurred in
respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. Revenues from the sale of goods and services are recognized when
the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership and the Company retains neither
continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold. Revenues include received or due payments for delivered goods and services decreased by the amount of any trade
discounts, value added tax (VAT), excise tax and fuel charges.
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28.3.2. Revenues (continued)

Revenues are measured at the fair value of the received or due payments. Revenues from sale are adjusted for profit or
loss from settlement of cash flows hedging instruments related to the above mentioned revenues.

Revenues and expenses relating to services for which the start and end dates fall within different reporting periods are
recognized based on the percentage of completion method, if the outcome of a transaction can be measured reliably, i.e.
when total contract revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
contract will flow to the Company and the stage of completion can be measured reliably. If those conditions are not met,
revenues are recognized up to the cost incurred, but not greater than the cost which is expected to be recovered by the
Company.

28.3.3. Costs

Costs (relating to operating activity) include costs that relate to core activities, i.e. activities for which the Company was
founded, costs are recurring and are not of incidental character.

Cost of sales comprises costs of finished goods, merchandise and raw materials sold and adjustments related to
inventories written down to net realizable value.

Distribution expenses include selling brokerage expenses, trading expenses, advertising and promotion expenses as well
as distribution expenses.

Administrative expenses include expenses relating to management and administration of the Company as a whole.

28.3.4. Other operating income and expenses

Other operating income includes, in particular income from liquidation and sale of non-financial non-current assets, surplus
assets, return of court fees, penalties earned, excess of grants received to revenues over the value of costs, assets
received free of charge, reversal of receivable impairment allowances and some provisions, compensations earned and
revaluation gains, gain on the sale of investment property.

Other operating expenses include in particular loss on liquidation and sale of non-financial non-current assets, assets
deficit, court fees, contractual penalties and fines, penalties for non-compliance with environmental protection regulations,
cash and tangible assets transferred free of charge, impairment allowances (except those that are recognized as financial
costs and cost of sales), compensation paid, write-off of construction in progress which have not produced the desired
economic effect, cost of recovery of receivables and revaluation losses, loss on sale of investment property.

28.3.5. Finance income and costs

Finance income includes, in particular, income from the sale of shares and other securities, dividends received, interest
earned on cash in bank accounts, term deposits and loans granted, increase in the value of financial assets and net
foreign exchange gains.

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.
Finance costs include, in particular, loss on sale of shares and securities and costs associated with such sale, impairment
losses relating to financial assets such as shares, securities and interest, net foreign exchange losses, interest on own
bonds and other securities issued, interest on finance lease, commissions on bank loans, borrowings and guarantees.

28.3.6. Tax expense

Income tax expenses include current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax expense is determined in accordance with the relevant tax law based on the taxable profit for a given period
and is recognized as a ||ab|I|ty, in the amount which has not been paid or receivable, if the amount of the current and prior
periods income tax paid exceeds the amount due.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are accounted for as non-current are not discounted and are offset in the statement of
financial position, if there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts.

The transactions settled directly in equity are recognized in equity.

28.3.7. Profit/(loss) per share

Basic profit/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for a given period which is attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.
The Company has no potential dilutive shares.

28.3.8.  Property, plant and eqmpment

Property, plant and equipment are assets that are held for use in the productlon or supply of goods or services, for rental
to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one period (one year or the
operating cycle, if longer than one year).

Property, plant and equipment include both fixed assets (assets that are in the condition necessary for them to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management) as well as construction in progress (assets that are in the course of
construction or development necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management).
Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at cost, including grants related to assets (IAS20). The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset
into use.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment also includes estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item
and restoring the site/fland on which it is located, the obligation for which is connected with acquisition or construction of an
item of property, plant and equipment and capitalized borrowing costs.
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28.3.8. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement of financial position prepared at the end of the reporting period
at the carrying amount, including grants related to assets. The carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is initially
recognised (cost) after deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation of an item of property, plant and equipment begins when it is available for use that is from the month it is in
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management, over the
period reflecting their estimated useful life, considering the residual value.

Components of property, plant and equipment which are material for the whole item are depreciated separately in
accordance with their useful lives.

The following standard useful lives are used for property, plant and equipment:

Buildings and constructions 10-40 years
Machinery and equipment 4-35 years
Vehicles and other 2-20 years

Residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation methods are reassessed annually. The adjustments to
depreciation expense are accounted for in subsequent period (prospectively).

The costs of significant repairs and regular maintenance programs are recognized as property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with their useful lives. The costs of current maintenance of property, plant and equipment are
recognized as an expense when they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment, when there are indicators or events that may imply that the
carrying amount of those assets may not be recoverable.

28.3.9. Investment property

Investment properties are properties which are held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both.

Investment property shall be recognized as an asset when, and only when:

- it is probable that the future economic benefits that are associated with the investment property will flow to the
Company, and

- the cost of the investment property can be measured reliably.

An investment property shall be measured initially at its cost. Transaction costs shall be included in the initial

measurement. The cost of a purchased investment property comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable

expenditure. Directly attributable expenditure includes, for example, professional fees for legal services, property transfer

taxes and other transaction costs. For internally constructed investment property the cost is set at the date of construction

completion when the asset is brought into use, in accordance with rules set for property, plant and equipment.

After initial recognition investment property shall be measured at fair value. Gains and losses resulting from changes in fair

value of investment property are presented in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period

which they arise. The Company determines fair value without any deduction for transaction costs it may incur on sale or

other disposal.

If the Coompany determines that the fair value of an investment property is not reliably determinable on a continuing basis,

the Company shall measure that investment property at cost in accordance with rules set for property, plant and

equipment.

An investment property is derecognized on disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use

and no future economic benefits are expected.

28.3.10. Intangible assets

Intangible assets include identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance. An asset is identifiable if it is either
separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from the Company and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or
exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable asset or liability, regardless of whether the
Company intends to do so, or arises from contractual or other tegal rights, regardless of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the Company or from other rights and obligations.

Intangible assets are recognized if it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the
assets will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

An intangible asset arising from development (or from development phase of an internal project) shall be recognised if,
and only if, the Company can demonstrate all of the following: the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it, its ability to use or sell
the intangible asset, how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits, among other things, the
Company can demonstrate the existence of a market for the output of the intangible asset itself or, if it is to be used
internally, the usefulness of the intangible asset, the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset, its ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

If the definition criteria of an intangible asset are not met, the cost incurred to acquire or self develop an asset are
recognised in profit or loss when incurred. An intangible asset that is acquired in a business combination, the cost of that
intangible asset is its fair value at the acquisition date.

An intangible asset shall be measured initially at cost, including grants related to assets (IAS20). An intangible asset that is
acquired in a business combination, is recognised initially at fair value.

After initial recognition, an intangible asset shall be presented in the financial statements at its net carrying amount,
including grants related to assets.

Intangible assets are measured at acquisition or at construction cost less amortization and impairment allowances.
Intangible assets with a finite useful life are amortized when they become available for use that is when they are in the
location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management over
their estimated useful life. The depreciable amount of an asset with a finite useful life is determined after deducting its
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28.3.10. Intangible assets (continued)
residual value. Excluding particular cases, the residual value of an intangible asset with a finite useful life shall be
assumed to be zero.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset, e.g. interest,
commissions, are part of the initial cost.
The following standard useful lives are used for intangible assets:

Acquired licenses, patents, and similar intangible assets 2-15 years

Acquired computer software 2-10 years
Appropriateness of the applied amortization periods and rates is periodically reviewed, at least at the end of the reporting
year, and potential adjustments to amortization allowances are made in the subsequent periods. Intangible assets with an
indefinite useful life are not amortized. Their value is decreased by the eventual impairment allowances. Additionally, the
useful life of an intangible asset that is not being amortized shall be reviewed each period to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.

28.3.10.1. Carbon dioxide emission allowances

By the virtue of The Kyoto Protocol, the countries, which decided to ratify the Protocol, obliged themselves to reduce
emissions of greenhouse gases, i.e. carbon dioxide (CO,).

In the European Union countries, the plants and companies, which reach productivity exceeding 20 MW and some other
industrial plants were obliged to participate in an emissions trading system. All mentioned entities are allowed to emit CO,
or they are partially granted free of charge in a specified quantity under the derogations provided in article 10a and 10c of
the EU Directive 2009/29/EC and are obliged to redeem them in a number corresponding to the size of emission realized
in a given year.

CO:2 emission rights are initially recognised as intangible assets, which are not amortized (assuming the high residual
value), but tested for impairment.

Granted emission allowances should be presented separately as intangible assets in correspondence with deferred
income at fair value as at the date of registration (grant in scope of IAS 20). Purchased allowances should be presented as
intangible assets at purchase price.

For the estimated CO2 emission during the reporting period, a provision should be created (taxes and charges).

Grants should be recognised on a systematic basis to ensure proportionality with the related costs which the grants are
intended to compensate.

Consumption of allowances is recognised using FIFO method (First In, First Out) within the individual types of rights (EUA
- European Union Allowances, ERU — Emission Reductions Units, CER — Certified Emission Reduction).

28.3.11. Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period the Company assesses whether there are any indicators that an asset or cash

generating unit (CGU) may be impaired. If any such indicator exists, the entity shall estimate the recoverable amount of

the asset (CGU).

The recoverable amount of other assets is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Fair value less costs to sell is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date, less costs to sell. '

Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or cash-generating unit.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount

rate that reflects: current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Assets that do not generate the independent cash flows are grouped at the lowest level at which cash flows, independent

from cash flows from other assets, are generated (cash generating units).

To the cash generating unit the following assets are allocated:

- goodwill, if it may be assumed, that the cash generating unit benefited from the synergies associated with a business
combination with another entity,

- corporate assets, if they may be allocated on a reasonable and coherent basis.

If there are external or internal indicators that the carrying amount of an asset as at the end of the reporting period may not

be recoverable, the impairment tests are carried out. The tests are also carried out annually for intangible assets with

indefinite useful life and for goodwill.

When the carrying amount of an asset or a cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the carrying amount is

decreased to the recoverable amount by an adequate impairment allowance charged against cost in profit or loss. The

recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

The impairment loss shall be allocated to the carrying amount of the assets of the unit in the foilowing order:

- first, to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit; and

- then, to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

At the end of each reporting period an assessment shall be made whether an impairment loss recognized in prior periods

for an asset shall be partly or completely reversed. Indications of a potential decrease in an impairment loss mainly mirror

the indications of a potential impairment loss in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill shall be recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless

the asset is carried at a revalued amount in accordance with another standard.
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28.3.12. .Inventories

Inventories are assets held for sale in the ordinary course of business, or in the process of production for such sale, or in
the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories comprise products, semi-finished products and work in progress, merchandise and materials.

Finished goods, semi-finished products and work in progress are measured initially at production cost. Production costs
include costs of materials and costs of conversion for the production period. Costs of production also include a systematic
allocation of fixed and variable production overheads estimated for normal production level.

Finished goods, semi-finished products and work in progress shall be measured at the end of the reporting period at the
lower of cost or net realisable value, after deducting any impairment losses.

Disposals of finished goods, semi-finished products and work in progress are determined based on the weighted average
cost formula, the cost of each item is determined from the weighted average of the cost of similar items produced during
the reporting period.

Merchandise and materials are measured initially at acquisition cost.

As at the end of the reporting period merchandise and raw materials are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable
value, considering any impairment allowances. Disposals of merchandise and raw materials are determined based on the
weighted average acquisition cost or production cost formula. Impairment tests for specific items of inventories are carried
out on a current basis during an annual reporting period. Write-down to net realizable value concerns raw materials and
merchandise that are damaged or obsolete.

Raw materials held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which
they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. However, when a decline in the price of materials
indicates that the cost of the finished products exceeds net realisable value, the materials are written down to net
realisable value.

Expenses and revenues connected with inventory write-offs or establishment and release of allowances are included in cost of
sales.

28.3.13. Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at a fair value increased by transaction costs and subsequently at
amortized cost using the effective interest method less impairment allowances.

Impairment allowances of receivables are based on an individual analysis of the value of held collaterals, and based on
possible compensations of debts, allowances.

Recognition and reversal of impairment losses of receivables are recognized in other operating activity in relation to the
principal amount and in financial activities in relation to interest for delayed payments.

28.3.14. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and in a bank accounts. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments
(of original maturity up to three months) that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments
rather than for investment or other purposes.

28.3.15. Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities) that are expected to be recovered primarily
through sale rather than continuing use are classified as held for sale. .

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when the following criteria are simultaneously met:

- the sales were declared by the appropriate level of management;

- the assets are available for an immediate sale in their present condition;

- an active program to locate a buyer has been initiated,

- the sale transaction is highly probable and can be settled within 12 months following the sale decision;

- the selling price is reasonable in relation to its current fair value;

- itis unlikely that significant changes to the sales plan of these assets will be introduced.

The c¢lassification of assets into this category is made in the reporting period when the classification criteria are met. If the
criteria for classification of a non-current asset as held for sale are met after the reporting period, an entity shall not classify
a non-current asset as held for sale in those financial statements when issued.

Immediately, before classification as held for sale, the assets (or components of a disposal group) are remeasured in
accordance with the Company’s accounting policies. Thereafter generally the assets (excluding financial assets) are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal group first
is allocated to goodwill, and then to the remaining assets and liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated
to inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets or investment property, which continue to be measured in accordance
with the Company’s accounting policies. While a non-current asset is classified as held for sale it shall not be depreciated
(or amortized). A gain is recognized for any subsequent increase in fair value less costs to sell an asset, but not in excess
of the cumulative impairment loss that has been previously recognized.

A discontinued operation is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and:
- represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,

- is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, or
- is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

The Company shall re-present the disclosures presented with refer to discontinued operation for prior periods presented in
the separate financial statements so that the disclosures relate to all operations that have been discontinued by the end of
the reporting period for the latest period presented.
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28.3.15. Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations (continued)

If the Company ceases to classify a discontinued operations, the results of operations previously presented in discontinued
operations shall be reclassified and included in the resuits from continuing operations for all periods presented. The
amounts for prior periods shall be described as having been re-presented.

28.3.16.  Equity

Equity is recorded in the accounting records by type, in accordance with statutory regulations and the parent company’s
articles of association. Equity includes:

28.3.16.1. Share capital

The share capital is paid by shareholders and is stated at nominal value in accordance with the parent company's articles
of association and the entry in the Commercial Register.

28.3.16.2. Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve includes revaluation of items, which, according to the Company’'s regulations, relates to the

revaluation reserve, including particularly:

- change in the fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets;

- differences between the net book value and the fair value of a investment property at the date of reclassification from
the property occupied by the Company to a investment property.

28.3.16.3. Retained earnings

Retained earnings include:

- the amounts arising from profit distribution/loss cover,
- the undistributed result from prior periods,

- the current reporting period profit/loss,

- the corrections (profit/loss) of prior period errors,

- changes in accounting principles,

- other reserve capital as additional payments to equity,
- actuarial gains and losses from retirement benefits.

28.3.17. Trade and other liabilities

Liabilities, including trade liabilities, are initially stated at fair value, increased by, in the case of financial liability not
qualified as those measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction cost and subsequently, at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method.

Accruals are liabilities due for goods received or services provided, but not paid, invoiced or formally agreed with the
seller, together with amounts due to employees.

Although it is sometimes necessary to estimate the amount or timing of accruals, the related uncertainty is generally much
lower than it is for provisions.

28.3.18.  Provisions

A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. Provisions are recognized when the Comapny has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. If the
effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, The provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

28.3.18.1. Environmental provision

The Company creates provisions for future liabilities due to reclamation of contamiriated land or water or elimination of
harmful substances if there is such a legal or constructive obligation. The environmental provision for reclamation is
periodically reviewed on the basis of expert assessment.

28.3.18.2. Jubilee bonuses and retirement benefits

Under the Company’s remuneration plans, its employees are entitled to jubilee bonuses and retirement benefits. Jubilee
bonuses are paid to employees after an elapse of a defined number of years in service. Retirement benefits are paid once
at retirement. The amount of retirement benefits and jubilee bonuses depends on the number of years of service.

The jubilee bonuses are other long-term employee benefits, whereas retirement and pension benefits are classified as
retirement defined benefit plans.

The provision for jubilee bonuses, retirement and pension benefits is created in order to allocate costs to relevant periods.
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28.3.18.2. Jubilee bonuses and retirement benefits (continued)

The present value of those liabilities is estimated at the end of each reporting period by an independent actuary and
adjusted if there are any material indications impacting the value of the liabilities. The accumulated liabilities equal
discounted future payments, considering the demographic and financial assumptions including employee rotation, planned
increase of remuneration and relate to the period ended at the last day of the reporting year. Actuarial gains and losses
from:

- post employment benefits are recognized in components of other comprehensive income,

- other employment benefits, including jubilee bonuses, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

28.3.18.3. Shield programs

Shield programs provision (restructuring provision) is created when the Company initiated a restructuring plan or
announced the main features of the restructuring plan to those affected by it in a sufficiently specific manner to raise a
valid expectation in them that the restructuring will be carried out. A restructuring provision shall include only the direct
expenditures arising from the restructuring, i.e. connected with the termination of employment (paid leave payments and
compensations), termination of lease contracts, dismantling of assets.

28.3.18.4. CO2 emissions costs

The Company creates a provision for the estimated CO, emissions during the reporting period in operating activity costs
(taxes and charges).

28.3.18.5. Other provisions

Other provisions include mainly provisions for legal proceedings and are recognized after consideration of all available
information, including opinions of independent experts. If on the basis of such information it is more likely than not that a
present obligation exists at the end of the reporting period, the Company recognizes a provision (if the recognition criteria
are met).

If it is more probable that no present obligation exists at the end of the reporting period, the Company discloses a
contingent liability, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

28.3.19. Government grants

Government grants are transfers of resources to the Company by the government, government agencies and similar
bodies whether local, national or international, in return for past or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the
activities of the entity.

Government grants are recognized in the statement of financial position as deferred income when there is reasonable
assurance that it will be received and that the Company will comply with the conditions attached to it.

Grants related to costs are presented as compensation to the given cost in the period they are incurred. Surplus of the
received grant over the value of the given cost is presented as other operating income.

If the government grant relates to assets, it is presented net with the related asset and is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the related asset through decreased depreciation charges. The
treatment regarding Carbon dioxide emission allowances granted is described in note 28.3.10.1.

28.3.20. Statement of cash flows

The separate statement of cash flows is prepared using the indirect method.

Cash and cash equivalents presented in the separate statement of cash flows include cash and cash equivalents less
bank overdrafts, if they form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Dividends received are presented in cash flows from investing activities.

Dividends paid are presented in cash flows from financing activities.

Interest received from finance leases, loans granted, short-term securities and cash pooling system are presented in cash
flows from investing activities. Other interests received are presented in cash flows from operating activities.

Interest paid and provisions on bank loans and borrowings received, cash pool facility, debt securities issued and finance
leases are presented in cash flows from financing activities. Other interests paid are presented in cash flows from
operating activities.

28.3.21. Financial instruments
28.3.21.1. Measurement of financial assets and liabilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures financial assets and liabilities at their fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset or a financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

At the end of the reporting period the Company measures loans and receivables including trade receivables at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest is the rate which discounts estimated future cash flows
or payments made in expected periods until financial instrument expiration, and for shorter period in justified situations, up
to the net book value of financial asset or liability.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company measures its financial liabilities at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method.
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28.3.21.2. Transfers

In the Company, there were no particular circumstances for the reclassification of financial instruments measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

28.3.22.  Fair value management

The Company maximises the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs to meet the
objective of fair value measurement, which is to estimate the price at which an orderly transaction to transfer the liability or
equity instrument would take place between market participants as at the measurement date under current market
conditions.

The Company measures derivative instruments at fair value using valuation models for financial instruments based on
generally available exchange rates, interest rates, forward and volatility curves, for currencies and commodities quoted on
active markets.

The fair value of derivatives is based on discounted future flows related to contracted transactions as the difference
between term price and transaction price.

Forward rates of exchange are not modeled as a separate risk factor, but they are calculated as a result of a spot rate and
a forward interest rate for foreign currency in relation to CZK.

Derivative instruments are presented as assets when their valuation is positive and as liabilities when their valuation is
negative.

Gains and losses resulting from changes in fair value of derivative instruments, for which hedge accounting is not
applicable, are recognised in the current year profit or loss.

As compared to the previous reporting period, the Company has not changed valuation methods concerning derivative
instruments.

28.3.23. Lease

A lease is an agreement whereby a lessor conveys to the lessee in return for a payment or series of payments the right to
use an asset for an agreed period of time.

Assets used under the operating lease, that is under the agreement that does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee, are recognised as assets of the lessor. Determining whether the
transfer or risks and rewards exists depends on the assessment of the essence of the economic substance of the
transaction.

28.3.24. Contingent assets and liabilities

Contingent liabilities are defined as possible obligations that arise from past events and which are dependent on the
occurrence or non-occurrence of some uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or present
obligations that arise from past events but are not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligations or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the statement of financial position. However, the
information on contingent liabilities is disclosed unless the probability of outflow of resources relating to economic benefits
is remote. Contingent liabilities acquired as the result of a business combination are recognized as provisions in the
statement of financial position.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
-occurrence or non-occurrence-of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the statement of financial position as it may lead to recognition of the income,
which will never be realized; however, the respective information on the contingent receivable is disclosed if the inflow of
assets relating to economic benefits is probable the Company discloses respective information on the contingent asset in
the additional information to financial statements and if practicable, estimates the influence on financial results, according
to the accounting principles for valuation of provisions.

Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial
statements. If it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and the related income
are recognised in the financial statements of the period in which the change occurs. iIf an inflow of economic benefits has
become probable, an entity discloses the contingent asset.

28.3.25. Subsequent events after the reporting date

Subsequent events after the reporting date are those events, favourable and unfavourable that occur between the end of

the reporting period and date when the financial statements are authorized for issue. Two types of subsequent events can

be identified:

- those, that provide evidence of conditions that existed as at the end of the reporting period (events after the reporting
period requiring adjustments) and

- those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period (events after the reporting period not
requiring adjustments).
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29. APPLICATION OF PROFESSIONAL JUDGEMENT AND ASSUMPTION

The preparation of separate financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, equity,
revenues and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

In the matters of considerable weight, the Company’s management bases its estimates on opinions of independent
experts.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements and
estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in notes: 8. Tax credit/(expense), 9.
Property, plant and equipment, 10. Investment property, 11. Intangible assets, 13.1. Changes in impairment allowances of
inventories to net realizable value, 22. Financial instruments and 30. Contingent assets and liabilities.

The accounting policies described above have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these separate
financial statements.

30. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Mercury electrolysis termination

SPOLANA a.s. currently produces chlorine using a mercury electrolysis. In the event that production is terminated, the
Company is required to present a reclamation program after it stops using its fixed assets. On 9 September 2013, as a
result of administrative proceedings, SPOLANA a.s. received a consent of the Regional Office of Central Bohemian
Region to cxtend the integrated pollution prevention and control license from the end of 2014 until 30 June 2017. At the
same time, the Company was obliged to submit an action plan aiming to cease production of chlorine using mercury
electrolysis by 31 December 2016. The Company prepared the program and measures related to it, delivered it to the
relevant authorities according to the agreed schedule and awaits authorities’ comments. The proposed program assumes
continuation of PVC production with usage of an externally bought semi-product (EDC-ethylene dichloride) and the closure
of mercury electrolysis unit. As a result the closure of mercury electrolysis will have no adverse effect on production of
PVC. The new approach to production of PVC at the Company still requires supplies of ethylene to its plant in Neratovice.
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31. THE PARENT COMPANY AND STRUCTURE OF THE CONSOLIDATED GROUP

The following table shows subsidiaries and joint operations forming the consolidated group of UNIPETROL, a.s., and the
parent company’s interest in the capital of subsidiaries and joint operations held either directly by the parent company or
indirectly by the consolidated subsidiaries and allocation of subsidiaries into the Operating segments (as of 31 December

2016).
Name and place of business Ownership ~ Ownership. Operating segment  Website
i ; interest of the interest in
| . © parent  share capital '
[ ~ company in through
share capital subsidiaries
Parent company
UNIPETROL, a.s.
Na Pankraci 127, 140 00 Praha 4, Czech Republic Corporate Functions  www.unipetrol.cz
Subsidiaries consolidated in full method
CESKA RAFINERSKA, a s
Zaluzf 2, 436 70 Litvinov, Czech Republic 100.00% - Downstream www.ceskarafinerska.cz
HC VERVA Litvinov, a.s.
S.K. Neumanna 1598, Ltivinov Czech Republic - 70.95% Corporate Functions  www.hokej-litvinov.cz
Nadace Unipetrol
Z4aluZi 1, 436 01 Litvinov, Czech Republic - 100.00% Corporate Functions
PARAMO, a.s.
Prerovska 560, Svitkov, 530 06 Pardubice, Czech Republic 100.00% - Downstream WWW.paramo.cz
Paramo Oil s.r.o. (dormant entity)
Prerovska 560, Svitkov, 530 06 Pardubice, Czech Republic - 100.00% Downstream
PETROTRANS, s.r.o.
Strelnién4 2221, 182 00 Praha 8, Czech Republic 0.63% 89.37% Downstream www.petrotrans.cz
SPOLANA a.s.
ul. Préce 657, 277 11 Neratovice, Czech Republic - 100.06% Downstream wyaw.spolana.cz
UNIPETROL Deutschland GmbH
Paul Enrlich Str. 1/B, 63225 Langen/Hessen, Gemany 0.10% 99.90% Downstream www.unipetrol.de
UNIPETROL DOPRAVA s.r.0.
Litvinov - RiZodol &.p. 4, 436 70 Litvinov, Czech Republic 0.12% 99.88% Downstream www.unipetroldoprava.cz
UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.0.
Litvinov - Z&luZi 1, 436 70 Litvinov, Czech Republic 100.00% - Downstream www.unipetrolrpa.cz
Corporate Functions
Retail *
UNIPETROL RPA Hungary Kift
2040 Budadrs, Puskas Tivadar utca 12, Hungary - 100.00% Downstream
UNIPETROL SLOVENSKO s.r.0.
Jasikova 2, RuZinov, 821 03 Bratislava, Slovak Republic 13.04% 86,96% Downstream www.unipetrol.sk
Unipetrol vyzkumné vzdélavaci centrum, a.s.
Revoluéni B4/&.p. 1521,Ustl nad Labem, Czech Republic 100.00% -- Corporate functions  www.vuanch.cz
Joint operatlons consolidated based on shares In assets and tiabilities
Butadien Kralupy a.s.
Q. W'lqhterleho 810, 278 01 Kralupy nad Vitavou, Czech 51.00% = Bovnat oo butadien.cz
Republic R
32. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The Company’s management is not aware of any other events that have occurred since the end of the reporting period
that would have any material impact on the financial statements as at 31 December 2016.

33. STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY’S SHAREHOLDER

UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.0., as the sole shareholder of the Company confirmed its continuing interest in successful operation
of the Company and declared that it will, within the limits allowed under applicable laws, use its influence on the
Company's management and exercise its rights as a sole shareholder of the Company in such a way that the Company
would meet its obligations towards third parties covering at least the period of 12 months from the date of the Company’s
2016 statutory financial statements.

UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.o. is ready to continue to provide loan financing to the Company at least for the period of 12 months
form the date of the Company’s 2016 statutory financial statements issuance.

Based on these facts, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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SPOLANA a.s.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2016 (in thousands of CZK)

34. STATEMENTS OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD AND APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors of SPOLANA a.s. hereby declares that to the best of its knowledge the separate financial
statements and comparative data were prepared in compliance with the applicable accounting principles adopted by in the
Company (disclosed in note 28.3.) and that they reflect true and fair view on the financial position and financial result of the
Company, including basic risks and exposures.

The separate financial statements were authorized by the Board of Directors meeting held on 27 February 2017.

presentatives

Signatu7f statuto
]

Michat Krzysz{of Kaliciak ilip Mikotajczyk

Vice-chairman of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors
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KPMG Ceska republika Audit, s.r.o.
Pobfezni 1a

186 00 Praha 8

Czech Republic

+420 222 123 111

www.kpmg.cz

This document is an English translation of the Czech auditor’s report.
Only the Czech version of the report is legally binding.

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholder of
SPOLANA a.s.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SPOLANA as. (“the
Company”), prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union, which comprise the statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2016, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes. Information about the Company is set
out in Note 1 to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2016, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors, and Auditing Standards
of the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic, consisting of International Standards
on Auditing (ISAs) as amended by relevant application guidelines. Our responsibilities
under those regulations are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Act on Auditors and the Code of Ethics adopted by the Chamber of
Auditors of the Czech Republic, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.



Other Information

In accordance with Section 2(b) of the Act on Auditors, other information is defined as
information included in the annual report other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report. The statutory body is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information. In connection
with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. In addition, we assess whether the other information has been
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations, in
particular, whether the other information complies with laws and regulations in terms of
formal requirements and the procedure for preparing the other information in the context
of materiality, i.e. whether any non-compliance with those requirements could influence
judgments made on the basis of the other information.

Based on the procedures performed, to the extent we are able to assess it, we report that:

* the other information describing matters that are also presented in the financial
statements is, in all material respects, consistent with the financial statements; and

o the other information has been prepared in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations.

In addition, our responsibility is to report, based on the knowledge and understanding of
the Company obtained in the audit, on whether the other information contains any material
misstatement. Based on the procedures we have performed on the other information
obtained, we have not identified any material misstatement.

Responsibilities of the Statutory Body and Supervisory Board for the Financial
Statements

The statutory body is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the European Union and for such internal control as the supervisory body determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the statutory body is responsible for assessing the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the statutory body
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for the oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
process.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the above regulations will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the above regulations, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the statutory body.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the statutory body’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.



Statutory Auditor Responsible for the Engagement

Karel RGzZi¢ka is the statutory auditor responsible for the audit of the financial statements
of SPOLANA a.s. as at 31 December 2016, based on which this independent auditor's
report has been prepared.

Prague
27 February 2017
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